Law ftces

HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP

Ailanda Ot

31 Soults Caltean Street Boca Raon San Francrco
Sunte 600 bt Lauderdale St Pefershasg
PO Drawes 810 IP 12302-0810) Lachaoxionlle Tallahasser
Talbshansae Flonds 12301 | akeland Tamoa
RS0-224-7000 Mam Washmgon 0 €
FAX 85D 224 8812 Feew Yok Wt Pabim Beach
April 1, 1998 D. BRUCE MAY

9044255607

loternst Address:

dhmayia lhlaw com
VIA HAND DELIVERY
Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director
Division of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL: 32399-0850

Ih: & » [ 4 "I'||' .l -
Local Exchange Service, Docket No. 240 «7c! /7 x

Dear Ms. Bayo:

On behalf of our client, NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. ("NEXTLINK"), enclosed for
filing are the original and six (6) copies of NEXTLINK’s Application to Provide
Alternative Local Exchange Service Within the State of Florida. Appended to the
original Application are NEXTLINK Communication, Inc.'s most recent 10K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and a check in the amount of $250.00 to
cover the filing fee.

For our records, please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the enclosed
copy of this letter. Thank you for your consideration in this matter. Should you have
questions or need additional information please do not hesitate to contact us.
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER - 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0850

APPLICATION FORM

for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE (ALEC)
ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

INSTRUCTIONS

+ This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for
approval of sale, assignment or transfer of an existing alternative local
exchange certificate. In case of a sale, assignment or transfer, the
information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee.

¢ Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices. If an
item is not applicable, please explain why.

* Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space.

L] If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

= e —— ]

Florida Public Service Commission
Division of Communications
Certification & Compliance Section
2540 Shumard Oak 3oulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0866
(850) 413-6600

+ Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along
ﬂwmwmﬂmgmmm

rvi ion at the abov

FORM PSCICMU B (11/85)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.5.




APPLICATION FORM

1. This is an application for V¥ (check one):

(x ) Original authority (new company)

( ) Approval of transfer (to another certficated company)
Example, a certificated company purchases an existing
company and desires to retain the original certificate

authority.

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate
(to a noncertificated company)
Example, a non-certificated company purchases an existing
company and desires to retain the certificate of authority
rather than apply for a new certificate.

( ) Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company)
Example, a company purchases 51% of a certificated
company. The Commission must approve the new controlling

entity.

2. Name of applicant:

NEXTLINK Florida, Inc.

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a):

NEXTLINK or NEXTLINK Florida

4. If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/bla) registration.
Fictitious name registration number:

NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. is currently applying for its fictitious
name registration with the Florida Secretary of State's office.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/35)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S. 2




APPLICATION FORM

3. A. National mailing address including street name, nuniber, post office box,
city, state, zip code, and phone number.

NEXTLINK Florida, Inc.

155 108th Avenue NE

Suite B10

Pellevue, WA 98004

L]

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post offica
box, city, state, zip code, and phone number.

Applicant has no Florida mailing address at this time. All correspondence

should be directed to NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 155 10Bth Avenuc

NE Suite B10 Bellevue, WA 98004,

6.  Structure of organization: ¥ Check appropriate box(s)

) Individual ( ) Corporation

) Foreign Corporation () Foreign Partnership
) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership
) (

(
(x
(
( ) Joint Venture ) Other, Please explain

7. If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please give name,
title and address of each legal entity.

Not applicable

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11795)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.5. 3




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

APPLICATION FORM

Has the applicant been denied certification in any other state? If so, please list
the state and reason for denial.

No

Have penalties been imposed against the applicant in any other state? If so,
please list the state and reason for penalty.

No

Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint with your company.

A customor may file a complaint by writing Lo NEXTLINK Florida, Inc..

155 108th Avenuc NE, Suite 810, Pellevue, WA 9A004. Once NEXTLINK

Florida becomes operational, customors will bo able to file a copplajot

by calling a customer eeivice numbor 24 hours a day, scven dayd 4 wook,

Please complete and file a price list in accordance with Commission Rule 25-
24.825.(Rule attached)

Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has
the following capabilities to provide alternative local exchange service in Florida.

A. Financial capability.
Regarding the showing of findncial capability, the following applies:

The application should contain the applicant's financial statements
for the most recent 3 years, including.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11795)
Required by Chapter 364,337 F.8. 5




B, Managerial Capability.

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.'s senior management is uniquely
qualified to develop and operate o competitive local exchange
telecommunications company in Florida. Craig McCaw, NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc.'s founder, was previously the founder and chief
executive officer of McCaw Cellular Communications, Inc.. the nation’s
largest provider of wircless communications services, until the company
was sold to AT&T in 1994, Jim Voelker, NEXTLINK Communications,
Inc.'s President, is recognized as one of the early entreprencurs in the
business of building and delivering competitive local exchange service.
During his 20+ years in the teleccommunications industry, Mr. Voclker has
held a wide range of executive positions among various providers. Mr.
Voelker was vice chairman of U.S. Signal, Inc., one of the nation’s first
fully certified competitive local exchange carriers. The other senior
members of NEXTLINK Florida, Inc.'s management team have
considerable experience in the telecommunications industry. Please see
Attachment B for biographies of NEXLINK Florida, Inc.'s officers and
directors.

C. Technical Capability.

(If you will be providing local intra-exchange switched telecommunications service,
then state how you will provide access to 911 emergency service. If the nature of the
emergency 911 service access and funding mechanism is nol equivaient to that provided by
the local exchange companies in the areas to be served, describe in detail the difference.)

NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. has the technical qualifications necessary to
operate as an Alternative Local Exchange Carrier (ALEC) in Flonda.
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc."s subsidiaries have already deployed
Class 4/5 switching systems in Harrisburg and Philadelphia, PA, Spohanc,
WA, Santa Ana, CA, Las Vegas, NV, Nashville and Memphis, TN,
Cleveland and Columbus, OH, Salt Lake City, UT, and Chicago, 11, and 1s
in the process of deploying a similar Class 4/5 switching system in other
citites. The Company employs a uniform switching technology platform
based on Nortel DMS 500 switches which enables NEXTLINK to provide
state-of-the-art services and enhanced calling features. NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc. also constructs high capacity networks that utilize
large fiber bundles capable of carrying high volumes of voice, data, video
and Internet traffic as well as other high bandwidth services. NEXTLINK
has the technical expertise required to deploy and maintuin a local
exchange network.




APPLICATION FORM

AFFIDAVIT

By my signature below, |, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the applicant
has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide
atternative local exchange service in the State of Florida. | have read the foregoing and
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct.
| attest that | have the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply,
now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and orders.

Further, | am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes,
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be
guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s.
775.082 and s. 775.083".

Official: K/Z@y 3.30-9OF

Signature Date

Title: Vieo President {202) 721-0999
Telephone Number

NEXTLINK Florida, Inc.

Address: 1730 Rhode Tsland Avenue

Suite 1000

Washington, D.C. 20036

FORM PSCI/CMU 8 (11/95)
Required by Chapter 384337 F.5.
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.

PART |

Item 1. Description of Business

Capitalized terms used herein which are not otherwise defined have the respective meanings assribed 1o
them in the Glossary, beginning on page 19

heniew

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. ("NEXTLINK" or the “Company™) was founded in 1994 by
Craig O, McCaw, its largest and controlling sharcholder, to pros ide local facilities-hased telecoiimunications
scrvices 10 its targeted customer base of small and medium-sized businesses In July 1990, NEXTLINK
became one of the first competitive local exchange camens (“CLECS”) in the United States 1o prinude
facilities-based switched local services under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Telecom Ac™).
which opened the entire local exchange market to competition. In each of the markets it serves. NEXTLINK
scehs to become a principal competitor to the incumbent local exchange carmer (“ILECT) for as targeted
customers by providing an integrated package i high quality local, long distance and enhanced telecommun-
cations services al competitive prices. In October 1997, the Company completed an tnitial public offering of
shares of its Class A Common Stock.

The market potential for competitive telecommunications services 1s large and growing Indusiry sources
estimate that in 1996 the towl revenues from local and long distance telecommunications servives were
approximately $1%3 billion, of which approximately $101 hillion were denved from local exchange servies
and approximately $82 billion from long distance services. Hased upon FCC information, aggregate revenues
for local and long distance services grew at a compounded annual rate of approvimately 5 8% hetween 199)
and 1996, The Telecom Act, the FCC's issuance of rules for competition and pro-competitive policies
developed by state regulatory commissions, has created opportunities for new entrants, including the
Company, to capture a portion of the ILEC’s dominant, and histonically monopoly controlled, market share of
local services. The development of switched local services competition, however, is in its carly stages. and the
Company believes that CLECs currently serve fewer than 8% of the total business lines in the United Stites

The Company's targeted customer base within the national telecommunications market is small 1o
medium-sized businesses, generally those businesses with fewer than 0 access hines. Based on consultanis’
reports. the Company estimates that as of year end 1996, there were approximately 170 mullion sccess hines
nationwide, including approximately 35 milhon business hines

The Company develops and operates high capacity, fiber optic networks with broad market coverage in a
growing number of markets across the United States. In s suilched local service markets, the Company
offers its customers a bundled package of local and loug distance services and abso offers dedicated
transmission and competitive access services to long distance carmers and end users In addition. NEXTLINK
offers several non-network-based enhanced communications services to customers nationwide. including a
variely of inleractive voice response (CIVRY) producis

The Company currently operates 16 facilitics-based networks providing switched local and long distance
services in 26 markets in cight states. The Company anticipates developing additional new murkels dunng
1998 which, together with its existing markets, are eapected 1o have a total of approxsimately 15 million
addressable business lines by the end of 1998 The Company’s goal 1s 1o add or expand markets L increase its
addressable business lines for markets in service or under development to approsimately 21 onlhon by the end
of 1999,



The Company believes that a similarly critical event occurred in 1996 with the passage of the Telecam
Act. In most locations throughout the United States. the 1LEC s operated with o sutual moaopaly over the
provision of most local exchange services. Homever, just as conmpa it shos ly cmeiged in the long distance
husiness pror 1o the ML competitive opportunities alsi have slowly emerged over the last 10 scars il the

lovw il losed

Industry sources estimate that in 1996 (he total revenues from local and long distance lelecommunica-
lions services were approximately $183 billion, of which approximately $101 billion were denved from focal
exchange services and approximately $82 billion from interl ATA long distance services iased upon HCC
information, aggregate revenues for local and long distance services grew at i compounded annual rate of
approximately 5.5% between 1991 and 1996, Although the MFJ relating 1o the breakup of AT&T established
the preconditions for competition in the market for long distance services in 1984, the market for local
exchange services has been, until recently, virtually closed to competition and has largely been dominated by
regulated monopolics. Efforts 1o open the local exchange market began in the late 1980s on u state-by-state
basis when competitive access providers (“CAPs”) began offenng dedicated private line transmission and
special access services, These types of services together currently account for approximately 12% of the total
local exchange revenues. CAPs were restricted, often by state laws, from providing the other, more frequently
used services such ns basic and switched services, which today account for approsimately 88% of local
exchange revenues.

The Telecom Act and the FCC's issuance of tules for competition, particularly those requinng the
interconnection of all networks and the interchange of traffic among the ILECs and the CLECs, as well as
pro-competitive policies already developed by state regulatory commissions, have caused fundamenial changes
in the structure of the local exchange markets. Although a recent decision by the Umited States Coun of
Appeals for the Eighth Circuit substantially limits the FCC's jurisdiction and expands the state regulators’
jurisdiction 1o set and enforce rules governing the development of local competition, most states have already
hegun to establish rules for local competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth
Circuit. See “— Regulatory Overview.”

These developments create opportunities for new entrants offering local enchange services o caplure a
portion of the ILEC's dominant, and historically monopoly controlled. murket share ol local services. The
development of switched local services competition, however, is in its carly stages and the Company belicves
that CLECs currently serve fewer than 5% of the total business lines in the United States

NEXTLINK believes that the provisions of the Telecom Act requiring the TLECS to cooperate on 4
technical level with competitors are as significant as the Telecom Act's provisions climimating state laws
barring competitors from entering the local exchange services market. Under the Telecom Act, the FCC and
state regulators are required to ensure that ILECs implement:

« Interconnection — provides competitors the right 1o connect 1o the ILECS networks at any techmie
cally feasible point and 1o oblain access to its rights-of-way.

« Unbundling of the Local Network — allows competitors to purchise and utilize components of the
ILECS network selectively;

«  Reciprocal Compensation — establishes the framewark for pricing between the CLEC and the TLEC
for use of each other's networks; and

«  Number Portability — allows ILEC customens to retain their current telephone numbers when they
switch to a CLEC.

It addition. the Telecom Act provides that ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs cannot combine in-
region, long distance services across local access and transport arcas (“LATAs™) with the loval services they
offer until they have demonstrated that they have complicd with certan regulatory requirements relating 1o
local competition. See *— Regulatory Overview.” One federal distnct court has ruled that the Telecom Act's
restrictions on RBOC long distance entry are unconstitutional. This decision has been stayed pending appeal.
See Federal legislation.”” The Company believes it will have an opportumty to gain marketl share in
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certain markets by combining local and long distance services 1in a single olfenng to its customens before that
markei's ILEC, il it 15 a subsidiary of 4 RBOC, s permutied to do so

Business Strategy

The Company has buill an end user-focused, locally onented organization dedicated o providing
switched local and long distance telephone service at competitive prnces to small and medium-sized
businesses. The key components of the Company’s strategy 1o become a leading prosvuder of compenitin
telecommunications services and o maamze penetotion of s ogeted costomer Tose aie

Proviade Pategrated  Fefecommiienications Services do0 Soadl and ModwoneStzed Businesses. The
Company pnmarily focuses its sales elforts for switched local and long distance services on small and
medium-sized businesses and professional groups, those businesses having lewer than 50 husiness lines
The Company’s market rescarch indicates that these customers prefer a single source for all of their
telecommunications requirements, including products, billing. installation, maintenance and customer
service. The Company has chosen to focus on this segment hased on its expectations that higher gross
margins will generally be available on services provided o these customers as compared with larger
business, and that ILECs may be less likely to apply significant resources towards retaining these
customers. The Company expects 1o attract and retain these customers through o direct sales effort by
offening: (1) bundled local and long distance services, as well as the Company’s enhance communmcations
services: (i) up 1o a 10% to 15% discount to comparable pricing by the ILEC as well as promotional
discounts, depending on the individual market: and () responsive customer service aml account
management provided on a local level.

Foster Decentralized Local Managemeent and Contrsl. The Company behieves that its success 1s
enhanced by building locally based management teams that are responsible for the Company’s success in
cach of their operational markets. The Company has recruited expenenced entrepreneurs and industry
exccutives as presidents of cach of the Company’s operating subsidianies, many of whom have previously
built and led their own stan-up telecommunications businesses. The local presidents and their teams are
charged with achieving growth objectives in their respective markets and have decision making authornty
in key operating arcas, including customer care, network growth and building connectivity, and managing
the relationship and provisioning efforts with the ILEC. The Company has estublished an incentive based
compensation policy for these management teams that is based upon the achievement of targeted growth
and operational objectives. The Company believes that this local management focus will provide a critical
competitive edge in custamer acguisition and retention i cach market

Further Develop Efleciive Direct Sales and Customer Care Chrganizations. NEXTLINK 15 building
a highly motivated and experienced direct sales force and customer care organization that is designed o
establish a direct and personal relationship with its customers. The Company has expanded 115 sales force
from 98 salespcople at year end 1996 1o 223 salespeople at December 31, 1997, The Company eapects
further increase its sales force to approximately 350 salespeople by year end 1998, Salespeople are given
incentives through a commission structure that targets 40% of u salesperson’s compensation 1o be based
on performance. To ensure customer satisfaction, each customer will have a single point of contact for
customer care who is responsible for solving problems and responding to custumer inquines. The
Company has expanded its customer care organization from 36 customer care emplinees at year end
1996 10 162 customer care employecs at December 31, 1997 The Company expects to further increase its
customer care organization to approvimately 275 customer care employees by scar end 1998

Continuonsly Improve Provisioning Processes to Accelerate Revenue Growth  The Company be-
lieves that a significant ongoing challenge for CLECs will be to continuoushy improve provisioning
systems. which include the complex process of transitioning 1L EC customers to the Company’s network
Accordingly, the Company will continue to adentify and focus, as a key competitive stralegy, on
implementing best provisioning practices in cach of its markets that will provide for rapid and seamless
transitions of customers from the ILEC to the Company. To support the provisioning of i2s servives, the
Company has begun the long-term development and implementation of a comprehensive imfurmuition
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network expansion, The Company believes these services increase s visibaliny i attracting local
exchange customers when it operates networks in these markets

The Company's Telecommunications Senvices
Local and Long Distance Services

The Company commenced the offerng of switched local amd long distance services i seven markets on
July 4, 1996, and in 18 additional markets in 1997 In February 1995, the © ompany Linched swatched lical
and long distance services in Chicago, Hhnos and expects to commience the olfenng of switched local and long
distunce servives in additional muarkets, imcluding the south San Francisco Bay Area, New York Cuy, Atlanta
and Newark (NJ) arcas, dunng the remainder of 1995, The Company locuses 11s product ulﬁ:ﬂn! on hasie
telecommumeations services, which it believes are the core of Jocal exchange services. Pricing, which s
determine | and implemented by the Company’s operating subsidiary in cach local market, has been generally
1% 10 15% lower than the pricing for comparable local services from the TLEC and the Company also muhes
promotional offering prces available from time 10 time. The Company’s current product offenng includes:

»  Standard dial tone, including touch twone dialing. 911, and operator assisted calling,
»  Multi-trunk services, including direct inward dualing (DD and direct outward dialing (DOD )
» Long distance service, including 14, BOO/H8R and operator senvices,

«  Voice messaging with personalized preetings, send, transier, reply and remote retneval capabibues;
and

*  Directory hstings and assistance.

Currently, the Company offers CAP services in 26 markets, focusing on long distance carniers and the
private line needs of high volume customers In addition, data services that are currently oflered by the
Company include Ethernet, TOKEN nings, and Fiber Distributed Data Inteclace (EDDI)

The Company’s CAP services, which are used as both primary and back-up crcunts, fall into three
principal categories: (1) special access circuits that connect end users to long distance carners, (2) special
access circuits that connect long distance carriens’ Licilities 1o one another and (3} private line ircunts that
connect several fucilities owned by the same end user.

Enhanced Communications Nervices

NEXTLINKs IVR platform allows a consumer to dial into o computer-based ssstem vsing a toll-free
number and a touch tone phone and, by following a custonnred menu, W aceess a vanety of information and to
leave, simultancously, o profile of the caller behind for use by cither NEXTLINK or s chients. Currently,

NEXTLINK provides four types of IVR serviges:

«  LeaveWord — prompts the consumer to leave messages of any length or complexity, ranging from
cui:llug reguests and conlest entnes o specilic prodluct questions amd survess,

= Pealer Locator — helps a consumer to locate the nearest dealer of the client’s products by instantly
identifying the consumer’s arca and responding with the names. addresses and phone numbers of the
client’s locations within any desired mileage radius;

o duromated Order Entry — allows consumers to purchase products using the interactive phone service
24-hours a day, with real-time order and ¢redit card confirmation as well as arranging for delrvery ol
the new item to the consumer’s desired address, and

o [Interactive Call Center — provides the consumer with a menu of selections that include Dealer
Locator, Automated Order Entry and other functions, tncluding recenang a catalog, registening the
warranty of a product, contest entry and an option for callers 1o be forwarded to a live operator
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| The Company anticipates that it will contimie to explore other enhanced commumications serv o
opportunitics and may acquire, invest in or evtallishy nnarketmg relatinshipe with sadshitnonal seevice prosaders
in the future that support s overall business and marheting strategies

Sales and Customer Care
(verview

The Company utilizes a two-pronged sales strategy 1n can b of its markets, one directed o the sale of local
and long distance services and the other to enhanced communications services The primary sales eflorts in the
Company’s markets are for switched local and long distance services Tocusing on sl and miediumesized
businesses and professional groups with fewer than 50 business lines The Company nurhet research
indicates that these customers prefer a single source for all of their telecommunications requirements,
including products, billing, installation, mamtenance and customer service The Company utihizes a direct
sales effort offering combined local und long distance services with prices that are generally at a 105 1o 185
discount from the ILEC. Providing a combination of local und long distance servives provides the € ompany s
customers a level of convenicnce that has been generally unavailable since the break-up of AT&T The
Company is also marketing its enhanced commumications services through a separate direct sales toree in cavh
market, which is expected to increase the number of customers for all of NI ALINK' s telecommunications
services in that market at a faster rate. In sddition, the Company 1s continuing iy sales ctiorts Tor traditional
CAP services to long distance carriers and large commercial users

Kales Force

The Company is building a highly motivated and expenenved direct sales forve and customer care
organization that is designed 1o establish a direct and personal relationship with its customiers The Company
seeks to recruit salespeople with strong sales backgrounds. including salespeople from long distance
companies, telecommunications equipment manufacturers, NEEwork systems iniegraturs andd the 1L ECs The
Company has expanded its sales force from 9% salespeople at vear end 1990 1o 223 salespeuple  at
December 31, 1997, The Company expects to further increase its sales force 1o approximately 350 salespeople
by wear end 1998, Salespeople are given incentives through a commission structure that targets HFE of a
salesperson’s compensation to be based on performance. With respect to tradimional CAP services, the
Company currently utilizes o national sales force to establish and expand long distance company aceess service
sales. Sales efforts for long distance carmiers are centralized i order W provide o singtle panint of contact for
these customers.

The Company anticipates that its enhanced communiciations service olfenmgs will continue to be sold
across the country by its existing national sales force for these services The Compuny biis b augmented
these efforts with a separate, targeted, locally based sales foree in cach o it markets. The Company believes
that this approach to cach market will provide revenues that are incre mental 1o 1ts local exchange operations

Customer Care

The Company is augmenting iis direct sales approach with superion CUstimier care and support through
locally based customer care representatives. The Company s struciunng iis custonmer care rfganization in
such a manner that cach customer will have a single point of contact for customer care who is responsible for
solving problems and responding to customer inquinies. The Company has capanded ity customer care
organization from 36 customer care employees ot year end 1996 1o 162 customer care emplnees al
December 31, 1997, The Company seeks to provide a customer care group that has the abuliny and resources o
respond 1o and resolve customer problems as they anse. The Company believes that customer care
representatives will be the most effective if they are based in the commuaty in which the Company 1s offenng
services, which plucement will allow, among other things, the opportumity for the representatives fn visi the
customer’s location,
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The Company's Networks

The following table provides information on the markets in which the Conpans has Lsunched switched
local and long distance services,
| munch Date o

Stale ~ Market ) _ Switched | ocal Senbors
Tennessee ... ..... Memphis July 1996
MNashwille July 1994
Penowvlvaniu Allentown July 1%
Harrisburg July 1996
Lancaster July 1996
Rl.‘gldin? July 1996
Philadelphia July 1997
Scranton/ Wilkes Barre December 1997
Washingron .. Spokane July 1996
Lhal, . coliiissaies Salt Lake City January 1997
Orem/Provo September 1997
Nevada .......... Las Vegas Apnl 1997
Ohier .. ....... .. Cleveland Apnl 1997
Columbus Apnl 1947
California .. ...... Anahcim July 1997
Costa Mesa July 1997
Fullerton July 19497
Garden Grove July 1997
Huntington Beach July 1947
Inglewood July 1997
Irvine July 1997
Long Beach July 1997
Los Angcles July 1997
Orange July 1997
Santa Ana July 19497
Minois ... ._..... Chicago Fehruan 1995

Network Architecture
Design

The Company builds or acquires its own liber opiic networks because it believes that Lacilities-based full
service telecommunications companies whose networks are directly connected to their customers will have the
ability 10 respond more quickly to customer needs for capacity and services. Maureover, the Company believes
that facilities-based carriers develop a more knowledgeable, cooperative relationship with their customens,
improving their ability to provide new services und other telecommunications solutions, wlich should result in
higher long-1erm operating margins,

The Company believes that the future telecommunications imarket will be an interconnected network of
networks. The Company belicves that calls will flow between local netwarks, with customerns selecting their
service provider based on high quality and differentiated products. responsive customer seiviee and price, In
some circumstances, depending in part upon regulatory conditions, the Company will utihize its own network
for one portion of a call and resell the services of another carnier for the Je maining portion of a call. In other
instances, both the origination and termination of calls will tuke place on the Company's networks. The
Company's networks are designed to maximize connectivity directly with significant numbers of business end
users, and to casily interconnect and provide a least-cost routing flow of traflic berween the Company's
network and other networks in the marketplace.




In general, the Company secks to build wide, expansive networks, rather than a simiple core ning i a
downtown metropolitan area. The Company believes that this type of broad coverage of the markets in which
it operates will result in the following advantages:

» an increased number of buildings that can be directly connected to the Company s network, which
should maximize the number ol businesses to which the Company can offer 11s senvices.

* . higher volume of telecommunications traflic both onginaung and terminating on the Company’s
network, wloch shoubd result in mproved operating margins,

+ the ability 1o leverage 1ts investiment in bigh capacity ssatchong eoquapoincnt il oles trami o winl

* the opportunity for the Company's network o provide backhaul carnage Tor other telecommunca:
tions service providers such as long distance and wireless carners

[he Company secks lo further utilize this network design to increase the number of buildings and
customers directly connected to its networks. The Company believes that as compared to the extensive uw ol
unbundled loops and pursuing a pure resale business strategy, having a direct connection to s customers will
provide the Company with the highest long-term operating margins, allos the Company 1o proside preater
feature and quality control as well as offer customer service that s both prompt and etlecnve, because the
network o be serviced is controlled by the Company and not another service provider,

The Company seeks 1o build high capacity networks using 4 backbone density ranging between 72 Gnd
240 strands. A single pair of glass fibers on the Company’s networks can currently  transnnt 12,256
simultancous voice conversations, whereas o typical pair of copper wires can currently carry 4 nuivamum of 24
digitized simultancous voice conversations. The Company believes that installing high count liber strands wall
allow the Company to offer a higher volume of voice and broadband services without incurnng sigmificant
addivional construction costs,

Construction

The construction period of a new netwark vanes depending upon the scope ol the activities, such as the
number of backbone route miles to be installed, whether the construction 1s underground or aenal. whether the
conduit is in place or requires construction, the inital number of buildings targeted for connection o the
network backbone and the general configuration for its deployment. After installing the network hackbone, the
Company evaluates extensions to additional buildings and expansions to other areas ol o market. based on
detailed assessments of market potential.

The Company’s network backbones are installed in conduits that are either owned by the Company or
leased from third parties. The Company leases conduit or pole space from entities sich as utilities, rlroads,
long distance carriers, state highway authorities, local governments and transt authontics. These arrange-
menis are gencrally for multi-year terms with renewal options, and are nonexclusive, The availability of these
arrangements is an important part of the Company's evaluation of a market. Cancellation of any ol the
Company's material right-of-way agreements could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business in 1ha
area and could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company.

Office buildings are connected pnmarily by network backbone extensions "o one of 4 number of pr ol
rings of fiber optic cable, which originate and terminate at the Company’s central node. Allernatinvel the
Company may access an end user's location through inteiconnection with the 1LEC's central ollive The
Company is also evalumting other alternatives for building connectivity, including wireless connections, for the
“last mile™ of transport. Signals are generally sent through o network backbone 1o the central node
simultancously on both primary and alternate protection paths. Most buldings served have o disorere
Company presence (reflerred 10 as a “remote hub”) located in the building. Within each bulding. € ompany-
owned internal wiring connects the remote hub to the customer premise. Customer eguipment 1s connected 1o
Company-provided electronic equipment generally located in the remote hub, where customer transnissions
are digilized, combined and converted to an oplical signal. The tratlic is then transmitted through the network
backbone to the Company’s central node where onginating trallic s reconligured Tor routing 1o its ultimate
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(NOCC). NEXTLAB provides the Company with a means to test switch soltware and service configurations
prior to their release on the Company's networks. The Company believes that this process should
(1) minimize network outages, (ii) save network operating and tratning costs and () improte levels of
customer service.

Implementation of Local Telecommunications

A company preparing to offe: local exchange services not only requires an installed switch, but also must
Lave numerous network and routing arrangements in place. NEXTLINK hus established all of these
arrangements for Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Washington, Utah, Ohio, Nevada, Colfornia and [linos. These
key elements include:

Interconnection. The Company has exccuted imerconnection agreements for all of its current operating
networks: in Nashville and Memphis, Tennessee, with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.; an Harnsburg,
Reading, Lancaster and Allentown, Pennsylvania, with Hell Atlantic-Pennsshoni, Inc. in New York,
New York with Bell Atlantic-New York, Inc; in Chicago, Hhinois, and in Cleveland and Columbus, Ohio,
with a division of Ameritech; in Spokane, Washington, and Salt Lake City and Provo/Orem. Uah with
U S WEST Communications, Inc.; in Los Angeles, California and the surrounding markets, with Pacihic Hell
and GTE Corporation; and in Las Vegas, Nevada, with a division of Sprint. The Company s currently
negotiating with BellSouth for an interconnection agreement to cover Atlanta by the end of the third quarter
of 1998, In addition, the Company believes that interconnection arrangements between the ILECs and other
CLECs or the Company will be in place in other markets that the Company may enter. The Company hkely
will initially “piggy-back™ on thesc other arrangemenis while pursuing more favorable long-term
arrangements.

The Company's approach to interconnection has been a two-step provess. Ta aceelerate its Launch of
switched local services, the Company hus entered into imitial interconnection arrangements that allow for the
immediate exchange of locul traffic with the ILEC. These arrangements allow the Company 1o commence
service immediately and then work to optimize its arrangements with the 1LES The Company's ILEC
agreements are now being re-negotiated under Sections 251 and 252 of the Telecom Act. The actual operating
cxperience gained through the Company’s initial interconneciion agreements gives the Company critical
knowledge for negotiating longer term arrangements. In some cases. where agreement on o long-term
arrangement cannot be reached, the Company may pursue binding arbitration before the state utility
commissions as provided under the Telecom Act. The Company currently has arbitration proceedings pending
in Pennsylvania and Tennessee with Bell Atlantic and BellSouth, respectively, Negotutions are continuing
with both parties during the pendency of the arbitration proceedings. There can be noassurance, however, that
the Company will be able to ncgotiate longer term relationships on terms and conditions satisfuctory 1o the
Company.

Telephone Numbers. The Company has been offered intenm number portalility arrangements by the
ILEC in cach of its markets, and the Company also is engaged inindustry negotiations to establish permanent
number portability. Number portability arrangements will allow 1L EC customers to retun their telephone
numbers when changing local exchange service carniers. In addition, the Company has been allocated multiple
blocks of 10,000 telephone numbers for each of its Tennessee, Washington. Fennsylvania, Ohio, Utah,
Nevada, California and [linois networks, and has applied for such numbers in New York, Tor use in asagning
new numbers o its customers. These numbers, known as NXX numbers, are the st three digits of
customer’s seven digit local phone number. In cach of these cases. the NXX s Tully louded into the Loval
Exchange Routing Guide or LERG, which instructs ILECs and other carriers 1o send o cull using a
NEXTLINK NXX to the appropriate NEXTLINK switch, for delivery to the NEXTLINK customer

887 Paint Codes.  For each of the Company’s switches, the Company has been assigned Point Coides for
use with the advanced signaling system known as S57 which s a separate or “out of band ™ communications
channel used between telecommunications carriers o set up and control tratlic on and between networks. The
Company has designed its network to fully unlize 857 signaling. which impioves call processing times and
frees capacity for voice, data, and video transmissions. The Company has entered into an agreement with a
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national $57 service provider that will allow the Company to utilize 857 signaling 1n ity current and new
markels nationwide,

Regulatory Overview

(verview

The Company's services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation. The FCC
generally exercises junsdiction over the facilities of, and services offered by, telecommunications common
carriers that provide interstate or international communications. The state regulatory commissions fetain
jurisdiction over the same facilitics and services to the extent they are used to provide mirastale communica-
tions. Local governments sometimes impose franchise or licensing requirements on local exchange and other
carriers and regulate street opening and construction activitics

The Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain interconnection obligations that, taken together, grant
competitive entrants such as the Company what is commonly relerred 1o as “co-carner status. ™ In addition,
the Telecom Act generally preempts state or local legal requirements that prohibit or have the elfect of
prohibiting any entity from providing telecommunications services The Telecom Act allows state regulatory
authorities to continue to impose competitively neutral requirements designed to promote universal service,

protect public safety and welfare, maintain quality of service and safeguard the nights of consumens. The
Telecom Act also preserves the ability of state and local authontics to manage and require compensation for
the use of public rights-of-way by telecommunicailons providers including competitors of the ILECs in the

local market.

It is anticipated that co-carrier status and the preemption of state and local prohibitions on entry could

permit the Company to become a full se
the United States. The following table summ

rvice provider of switched telecommunications services anyw here in
arizes the interconnection rights granted by the Telecom Act that

are most important to the achicvement of this goal and the Company's beliel as to the anticipated effect of the
new requirements, if properly implemented.

Ianue

[hefinition

Inlerconnection

Local Loop Unbundling
Reciprocal Compensation

Number Portability

Access o Phone Numbers

Efficient network interconnection
to transfer calls back and forth
between ILECs and competitive
networks (including 911, 04,
directory assistance, etc.)

Allows competitors 1o selectively
gain uccess to ILEC wires which
connect ILEC central offices with
CUSLOMET Premiscs

Mandates reciprocal
compensation for local traflic
exchange between ILECs and
competilors

Allows customers to change local
carriers without changing
numbers; true portability allows
incoming calls to be routed
directly 10 a competitor. Interim
portability allows incoming calls
1o be routed through the ILEC 10
a competitor al the evonami
cquivalent of true portability
Mandates assignment ol new
telephone numbers to competitive
telecommunications provider's
customers
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_ Asticipated Ffect

Allows a CLEC to service and
terminale calls 1o and from
customers connected to other
networks

Keduces the capital costs of i
CLEC to serve customers not
directly connected 1o its networks

Improves the CLECs margins for
local service

Allows customers 1o swilch to a
CLECs local service without
changing nhone numbers

Allows CLECs to provide
telephone numbers to new
customers on the same basis as
the ILEC




and other unbundled ILEC network clements. (1) the use of Total Element Long Run Incremental Conis
(“TELRIC™) in the pricing of these unbundled network clements, (iv) average delaull proxy prices Tor
unbundled local loops in cach state, (V) mutual compensation proxy fates lor termnatin ul ILECHCLEC
local calls and (vi) the ability of CLECs and other interconnecton te opl into paerbions of interconnection
agreements negotiated by the 1LECs with other partics on o most favored nation (or a “pick and chiwse™)
basis. See below for a discussion of the Eighth Circunt Court of Appeals decision invalidating certan aspecis

of this order.

On May §, 1997, the FCU released an order establishing a signiticant!y expanded federal telecommu-
nications subsidy regime. For example, the FCC established new subsidies fur services provided to quabifying
schools and libraries with an annual cap of $2.25 hilhon and for services provided 1 rural health care prnaden
with an annual cap of $400 million, The FCC also expanded the federal subsidies o low income consuners
Providers of interstate telecommunications services, such as the Company. as well as certain other entitics,
must pay for these programs. The Company s share of the schools, libranes and rural health care funds will he
based on its share of the total industry telecommunications service and certan defined telecommumcations
end user revenues. The Company's share of all other federal subsidy funds will Be Based wnts share ol the
total intenstate telecommunicaliony servive anid certain defined telecommunications end user rescnues The
Company intends to make all subsidy payments required by law, In the May K order, the FOC alwi anniunc cil
that it will soon revise its rules for subsidizing service provided o comumen i ligh vont arcas Several parties
have appealed the May K order. Such appeals have been consolidated and transferred 1o the United States
Court of Appeals for the Filth Circuit where they are currently pending. In aadition, on July ¥ 1997, several
ILECs filed a petition for stay of the May ¥ order with the FOCC. That petition is also pending

In a combined Report and Order and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking relcased on December 24, 199,
the FCC made changes and proposed further changes in the interstale access charge structure. In the Report
and Order. the FCC removed restrictions on ILECS ability to lower access prices and relaved the regulation
of new switched access services in those markets where there are other providen of Gucess services I this
increased pricing Mexibility i not ellectively monitored by federal regulators, it could have a matenal advene
effect on the Company’s abihity to compete in providing Iterntale acvess servives On May 16, 1997 1he FOC
released an order revising its access charge rale structure The new rules substantially increase the costs that
ILECSs subject to the FCC's pnce cap rules (“price cap LECs™) recover through monthly, no-tratlic sensitive
access charges and substantially decrease the costs that price cap LECs recover through trathic sensitive iveess
charges. In the May 16 order, the FCC also announced its plan 1o bring mtenstate access rate levels more in
line with cost. The plan will include rules to be established sometime this year that grant prce cap LECs
increased pricing flexibility upon demonsirations of increased competition (ur potential competition) in
relevant markets. The manner in which the FCC implements this approach 10 lowenng access charge levels
will have o material effect on the Company’s ability 1o compete in providing INERLILE access scrviues Several
partics have appealed the May 16 order. Those appeals have been comsolidated and transterred to the Unied
States Court of Appeals for the Lighth Circuit where they are currently pending

As part of its overall plan to lower interstale access rates, the OO also relessed an order on Moy 21
1997, in which the FCC revised its price cap rules. In the wrder, the FCC increasaid the so-called X-Factor
(the percentage by which price cap LECs must lower their intertate access charges evens year net of inflation
und exogenous cost increases) and made it uniform for all price cap LECs. The results of these rule changes
will be both a one-time overall reduction in price cap ILEC interstate access charges and an increase in the
rate at which those charges will be reduced in the future. Several partics have appealed the Aoy M oorder
Those appeals were consolidated and transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circunt
They have been subsequently transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Distnct of Columbia
where they arc currently pending

On January 2, 1997, Ameritech of Michigan became the first RBOC 1o apply for authority to provide in-
region interLATA service punuant o Section 271 of the Telecom Act. The application was withdrawn and
refiled on May 21, 1997, That application was denied on August 19, 1997 In denying the application, the L L
established specitic and substantial criteria that musi be miet belore Tuture Section 271 apphcations will be

granted
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On April 11, 1997, SBC Communications. Inc ("SBC™) applicd to the TCC T authonty o proside
ineregion interL ATA service in the state of Ohlahoma On June 26, 1997, the 1OC released an order rejecting
SHOC s application on the grounds that SHC had not demonstrated either that SHC had entered into an
approved interconnection agreement with a facilities-based CLEC or that no CLEC had requested intercon-
nection as of the statutory deadline. On July 3, 1997, SBC filed an appeal of the June 26 order with the United
States Court of Appeals for the Distnct of Columbia. On March 20, 1995, the Count of Appeals upheld the

FOCC's order.

In September and November 1997, BellSouth Corporation (*BellSouth™) tiled applications for authon-
zation to provide in-region interLATA service in the states of South Carohina and Lousiana. On Decem-
ber 24, 1997 and February 4. 1998, respectively. the FCC released orders rejecting BellSouth’s applications
which conclude that BellSouth had not yet demonstrated that it generally offered cach of the items of the
competitive checklist set forth in the Telecom Act. On January 13, 1998, BellSouth liled an appeal for the
December 24, 1997 ruling with the United States Distnict Court of Appeals for the District of Columbna. That
appeal is currently pending.

The Company anticipates that RBOCs will continue to apply for authoniy to provide in-region
interLATA services in markets where the Company operates or plans to operate. The Company also expects
that the FCC will initiate a number of additional proceedings, on its own imtiative and as a result of requests
from CLECs and others, as a result of the Telecom Act. While the Eighth Circuit's recent decmion in the
appeal of the August 8, 1996 order limits the FCC's jurisdiction over the local competition provisions of the
Telecom Act, such proceedings may nonciheless further define and construe the Telecom Act’s terms

Court of Appeals Decision

Varicus parties, including 1LECs and state PUCs, filed appeals of the FOU's August K 199 urder in
varous UL S, Courts of Appeal, and several parties petitoned the FOU and the couns to stay the effectiveness
of the FCC's rules included in the FCC's order, pending a ruling on the appeals. Miuny of the appeals were
consolidated and transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. On July 1K, 1997,
the Eighth Circuit overturned the pricing rules estublished in the August K 1996 order, except those
applicable to commercial mobile radio service providers. The Eighth Circuit held that, in gencral, the FCC
does not have jurisdiction over prices for interconnection, resale, leased unbundled network elements and
traffic termination. The Eighth Circuit also overturned the FCC's “pick and choose™ rules as well as certam
other FCC rules implementing the Telecom Act’s local competition provisions. In addition, the Eighth Circunt
decision substantially limits the FCC's authority 1o enforce the local competition provisions of the Telecom
AcL

On October 14, 1997, the Eighth Circuit vacated the FCC's rule prohibiting 1LECs from separating
unbundled network elements that are already combined, except at the request of CLECs. In addinon, under
the decision, ILECs are not required to recombine unbundled network elements, but must make such
clements available for CLECs to recombine on their vwn

On January 22, 1998, the Eighth Circuit issued a writ of mandamus ordenng the FCC to follow the
court’s July 1997 decision in addressing certain pricing issues in the context of RBOC Section 271 in-region
interLATA entry applications.

On January 26, 1994, the United States Supreme Cournt agreed 1o hear challenges 1o the Eighth Circuit’s
July 18, 1997 and October 14, 1997 decisions. The Court has agreed to review all issues raised by the
government, the RBOCs, and competitors. These include whether the FCC has authority (1) 1o set prices that
ILECs charge CLECs for access to local networks, (ii) to require ILECs to allow CLECs 1o use provisions of
existing interconnection agreements in their own agreements and (i) 1o force HEECs o otfer existing
combinations of unbundled network elements needed to provide loval service. Because the Court will hear the
consolidated cases in its next term which begins in October, a decision 1s not capected until nexl year
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In the short term the Company believes that the Eighth Circuit decivions will not hase a matenal adverse
effect on it, because the Company wlready has interconnection agreements in place, ot eapects 0 have such
agreements in place, under the provisions of the FCCTs order and the Telecom Act which were not invalidaicd
by the Court. The decision does not delay the implementation of the Telecom Act by the parties and by the
state PUCs. but rather eliminates the guidance on pricing and most favored nation procedures as well us other
issues that the FCC sought to provide to parties and the state PUCs

In the long term, the Eighth Circuit’s decisions make it more likely that the rules governing local
competition will vary from state to state. Most states have already begun 1o establish rules Tor local
competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth Cireut, 1t a patchwork of state
regulations were (o develop, it could increase the Compuny’s costs of regulatony compliance and could make
competitive entry in some markets more diticult and expensive than in others

Srate Regulation

The Company expects that as it offers local exchange and other intrastate scrvices inoan increasing
number of states. it will be subject to direct state public utility commission (“PUCT) regulation in most, il nol
all. such states. In states where the Company desires to oflier ity services, the Company may he required Lo
obtain authorization from the appropriate state commission, including certification ax a CLEC. In all states
where the Company is operational and cerification as a CLEC is currently required. the Company’s operating
subsidiaries are certificated. In those markets where the Company anticipates launching services in 199K, u
has received or applied for such certification

In most states, the Company is required 1o file tarifls or price lists setting forth the terms, conditions and
prices for services which are classified as intrastate. In some states, the Company’s taril can Dist o range of
prices for particular services, and in others, such prices can be set on an individual customer basis. The
Company is not subject to price cap or to rate of return regulation in any state in which it currently provides
scrvices,

As noted above, as a result of the July 18, 1997 Eighth Circuit decison, PUCs have an even more
significant responsibility in implementing the Telecom Act. Specifically., the states have authonty to establish
interconnection pricing. including unbundled loop charges, reciprocal compensation and whaolesale prcing,
The states are also charged under the Telecom Act with oversecing the arbitration pricess for resolving
interconnection negotiation disputes between CLECs and the ILECs. The Telecom Act allows state
regulatory authorities to continue to impose competitively neutral requirements designed to promote universal
service, protect public safety and wellare. maintain quality of service and safeguard the nghts of consumers.

Local Government Authorization

In certain locations, the Company is required to obtain local franchises, hicenses or other operating nghts
and street opening and construction permits to install, expand and operate its fiber-optic networks In some of
the arcas where the Company provides network services, the Company’s subsidianes pay lrcense or franchise
fees based on a percentage of gross revenues or on a per linear foot hasis. There 1s no assurance that certain
cities that do not currently impose fees will not seck to impose such fees in the future, nor is there any
assurance that, following the expiration of existing franchises, fees will remain at their current levels. Under
the Telecom Act, state and local governments retain the nght to manage the public nghts-of-way and 1o
require fair and reasonable compensation from telecommunications providers, on 4 competitiv ely neutral and
nondiscriminatory basis, for use of public nights-of-way.

If any of the Company’s existing franchise or license agreements were terminated poor 1o ity capiration
date and the Company were forced 1o remove its fiber from the streets or abandon its network i place, such
termination would have a material adverse effect on the Company's subsidiary in that arca and could have o
material adverse effect on the Company. The Company believes that the provisions of the Telecom Adt
barring state and local requirements that prohibit or have the elfect of prohibiting any entity from providing
telecommunications service should be construed to limit any such action. However, there can be no assurance
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competitors have financial, personnel and other resources, including name recognition,
than those of the Company.

significantly greater

The Company also competes with long distance carmers 0 the provision of long distance services

Although the long distance market is dominated by four major i.-_nmpctilurs. AT&T, MCI, Sprint and
WorldCom, hundreds of othcr companics also compete in the long distance marketplace

With respect to the Company’s enhanced communications semvice olfenngs, each i subject 1o compels

tion. For example. there are several competitors that offer IVR services., such as Call Interactive, which the
Company belicves focuses its sales efforts on large volume IVR service usen, Another competitor, Telemedia,
which is owned by Sprint, also offers significant call volume vapacily. With respeet to Magic Number, the
Company's virtual communications center, there are numenmis competiton with product offenngs that inclide
some of all of the services olfered by Mugic Number

Purchasing and Distribution

With respect to the Company’s fiber optic networks, which constitute the Company’s most sigmificant
capital investments, the Company has entered into general purchase agreements with key equipment supplicrs
for fiber and fiber optic transmission equipment, with Nortel for telecommunications switches, and with other
suppliers for various other components of cach system. These agreements provide the basic framework under
which purchase orders for these system components will be made. The specific purchases made for cach
network depend upon the configuration and other lactons related to the network, such as the prospective
customer hase and location and the services 1o be offered wer the network. Once these decisions arc made,
purchase orders for the appropriate fiber and selected equipment 1ypes are placed under the general purchase
agreements. In connection with the Company's provision of long distance services, it purchases capacity at
wholesale rates from long distance carriers, .

Employees

As of December 31, 1997, the Company emploved 1,327 people, including full-time _.md part-time
employees. The Company considers its employee relations to be goud. None of the employees of the Company
is covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Trademarks and Trade Names

The Company uses the name “NEXTLINK™ as iis priman business name. In July 1995, the Company
filed for federal trademark protection of this name and received ity notice of allowance from the LS Patent
and Trademark Office (the “PTO) un July 1. 1997 In addition, the Company has recenved a notice of
allowance from the PTO of its distinctive floating "X and related marks as protected trademarks under
federal law. The Company from time 1o lime receives requests 1o consider licensinge certam patents held by
third parties that may have bearing on its IVR and virtual coimunications center services. The Company
considers such requests on their menits, but has not to date enteicd into uny such heense agreements

Glossary

Addressable business lines — In accordance with industry  prachice. the Company ancludes in als
calculation of actual and targeted addressable business lines all business lines currently in active use through
any service provider in cach market arca in which the Company has or plans to build a network

CAP (competitive access neovider) — A company that peovides ils custamerns with an alternative to the

ILEC for local private line and special access lelecomniunications scrvices.
Central offices — The switching centers or central switching facilities of the LECs
CLEC reompetitive local exchange careier ) A company providing local telephone senvices in compel-
tion with the ILEC.




Corcarrier statuy — A regulatory scheme under which the TLEC is required 1o integrate new, vonipeling
providers of local exchange service. such as the Company, into the systems of e exchange. inter-carmer
compensation, and other inter-carrier relationships that already exist among TLECs in most jurisdictions.

Collocation — The ability of 2 CLEC such as the Company to connect its network to the TLECY central
oflices. Physical collocation occurs when a CLEC places its network connection equipment inside the HECs
central oflices, Virtual collocation is an aliernative o physical collocation pursuant to which the 1LEC pernnts
4 CLEC 10 connect its network to the ILEC's central offices on comparable terms, even though the CLEC
network connection equipment is not physically located mside the central oflices.

Dark fiber — Unused fiber through which no light is transmitied. Dark tiber s provided with the
customer expected to supply the required electronics and signals,

Deidicated — Telecommunications lines dedicated or reserved for use by particular customers and
charged on o Mat, usually monthly, basis.

NS00 DS, DS-3 — The standard circuit capacity chssitications, Each of these transmission senvices can
be provided using the same type of fiber optic cabie, but offer different bandwidth (rthat v capaciy
depending upon the individual needs of the end user. A DS-0 is o dedicated circut that 1 comsidered to meet
the requirements of usual business communications. with transmission capacity of up to 64 kilobits of
bandwidth per second (that is, a voice grade equivalent circunt) This senvice oflers o basic fow capacty
dedicated digital line for connecting telephones, fax machines, personal computers and other telecommunica-
tions equipment. A DS is o high speed digital cireun tpically linking high volume customer locations to
long distance carmers or other customer locations. Typically wtilized for voice transmissions v well as the
iterconnection of LANs, D5-1 service accommodates transamission speeds of up to 1544 megabits per
second. which is the cquivalent of 24 voice grade equivalent circuils, DS-3 service provides a veny high
capacity digital ciecuit with transmission capacity of 45 megabils per second, which 1s equivalent 1o 25 135-1
circuits or 672 voice grade equivalent circuits. This is i digital service used by long distance carners for central
vifice connections and by some large commercial users to link muliple sies

Fe¢ — The United States Federal Communications Comimnission

FODL (fiber distributed data interface) — Based on tiber optics, FDDE s o 100 megabit pes sevomd loval
area network technology used 1o conneet computers, printers, and workstations at very high speeds | DD
also wsed as buckbone technology o interconnect other LANs.

Fiter mile — The number of route miles installed (excluding pending imstallanions ) along o wlecommu-
pications path multiplied by the number of fibers along that path. See the detimtion of “route mile” below

JLEC (incumbent local exchange carrier) — A company that was providing local exchunge servace pruw
to the entry of the CLECS.

Liwad Exchunge — A geographic area determined by the appropriate state repulatory authonty in which
calls generally are transmitted without toll charges to the calling or called party

Line — An electrical path between an ILEC central office and a subscniber

Long distance carriers (interexchange carriers) — Long distance carmiers provule servives eiween liscal
exchuinges on an interstate or intrastate basis. A long distance carmer may offer servics onerits o o anwther
carner’s Tacilities,

Numher Portabilin: — The abiliy of an end user to change local exchange carners while retaming vhe
same telephone numiws

P poanis of presence) — Locations where a long distance varnier has insballed  transmssion
eypment i service afca that serves as, or relays calls 1o, o nctworh switching center of that long distance
warner

PUC tpablic widine commiaion) — A state regulistory body., extablished in most atites which repulates
atilities, inaluding telephone companies, providing intrastate services
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Company’s Class A Common Stock as reporied by the Nasdag Nanonal Market ter of The Nasdag Stock
Muarket,

igh Low
1997:
Third Quarter (since September 16, 1997) §25.50 s24003
Fourth Quarer. .. .. . . £27.75 Liv 50

Fhere as mis puahlie teadhimg market for the Compam’s Class B Common Stock or SEXTLINK Capital’s
wannion cyuily

As of Muarch 6, 1998, the approximate number ol sharcholders o recond ol the © ommprany « 8 Lioe & !
Class B Common Stock was 218 and 15, respectively. The Company s the sole holder of recond ol
NEXTLINK Capital's Common Stock.

Use of Proceeds

The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No 33032001 ) which became ellectine
on September 26, 1997, whereby 15,200,000 shares of Class A Common Stock |, SO0 par salue per share,
were sold in an initial public offering at a price of $17 per share. OF the 15,200,000 shares of Class A Commaon
Stock sold, 12,000,000 shares were sold by the Company and 12000000 shares were sald by a selling
sharcholder. The Company did not receive uany of the proceeds from the sale of shares s the selling
sharcholder. In addition, the underwniers of the PO, led by Sulomon Smith Barmes. exercised an option o
purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A Commaon Stock at the same price per share. Net proceeds to
the Company (rom the 1PO totaled approsimately $226 5 oullion, after deducting underanting discounts,
advisory fecs und cxpenses aggregating approximately $16.0 mullion The Company intends 1o use substantially
all of the net proceeds from the PO for expenditures reliting 1o the expansion of enisting networks and
services, the development and acquisition of new networks and services and the funding of operating losses and
waorking capital, None of the net proceeds from the 1PO had been used by the Compeny s ol December 31,
1997,

The Company filed a registration statement on Form 5-1 (File So 380020080 whioh became eflecine
on September 26, 1997, wherehy the Company sold $400 millon aggregate principal amount of 9%'% Senor
Notes due 2007 (“9%% Senior Notes™). The offenng was led by Salomon Sooth Barney . Net proveeds from
the sale of the %% Semor Notes totaled appromimately $38K.S nulhon, after deducting msuance costs
aggregating approximately STLS million. relating o underwriting discounts, advisory Tees and expenses The
usc of proceceds from the debt offenng are substantially the sumie as the Company’s 1P None ot the net
proceeds from the sale of 9%% Senior Notes had been used by the Company as of December 31, 1997

IVividends

Meither the Company por NEXTLINK Capital have dechared a cash doodend omoany of their respective
cquity securitics. Covenants in the indentures pursuant to which the Company s and SEXTLINK Capial's
Senior Notes have been issued restrict the ability of the Company to pav cash dividends onoits capital stock

Sales of Unregistered Securities

u"'i'unt.

ltem 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of (dperations
(heniew

Since is inception in 1994, the Company has evecuted o strategy of developmg hber aptic netw ks il
acquinng related telecommunications businesses, Over this penod, the Company s pursued this strategs by
constructing, acguiring, leasing fibers or capacity on, and entenng Into agreements to aoguire telecommuniga-
tions networks,
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The Company’s primary focus is providing switched local and long distance and enhanced communica-
tions services to small and medium-sized commercial end user customers The Company plans 1o acguare
bl o develop networks in new areas. espamd s oo pctwainbs, wnd aleo vaplioone the il o
Bownatng of additional enlanced communications scevices amd wther telecommunications sevive providers
I hese elforts should allow the Company 10 increase its presence in the marketplace, and facilitate providing a
single source solution for the telecommunications needs of ity customens

The table provides selected key operational data
As of Deoembsr M,

A 1%
Operating data (1):
Route miles(2). SrEen 1 .897 1 080
Fiber miles{3) ............ . 13820 iy, (144
On-net buildings connected(4) s11 0
OfT-net buildings connected($) o 1,504
Switches installed . . ... ... ool . 11 |
Access lines in service(6) ......... R 50,131 K511
Employees.............. Laa g . .37 SN

(1) The operating data include the statistics of the Las Vegas network, which the Company manages and in
which the Company has a 40% membenhip interest

(2) Route miles refers to the number of miles of the telecommunications path i which the Company -ow ned
or leased fiber optic cables are installed.

(3) Fiber miles refers to the number of route miles installed along a telecommunications path, multiplicd by
the Company’s estimate of the number of fibers along that path.

(4) Represents buildings physicully connected 1o the Company's networks, excluding those v mnected by
unbundled incumbent local exchange (ILEC) facilities

(5) Represents buildings connected to the Company's networks through leased or unbundled TLEC facihities.

(6) Represents the number of access lines in service, including those hines which are provided through resale
of Centrex services, for which the Company 1s billing services.

The Company builds its networks to encompass the significant business concentrations in cach area i
serves, focusing on direct connections to end user locations and ILEC central ollices. The Company employs a
uniform technology platform for each of its local exchange networks that is based on the Nortel DMS 500
digital local and long distance combination switching platform and associated distrihution technoligy. As of
January 31, 1998, the Company had 12 operational Nortel 1YMS 500 switches, including one switch s
NEXTLAB facility, and currently plans to install three additnonal switches by the erd of the second guarter ol
1998, NEXTLAB is a fully functional model of onc of the Company's networks, which serves s i testing
facility for switch software and the Company's products and services and will serve as the Company’s network
operalions conirol center.

The Company also provides cnhanced communications services including interactive solce fesponse
(“IVR") services, which provide an interface between the Company’s clients and their customers for a vanety
of applications. Historically, the Company has derived a substantial proportion of its revenues from these IVR
services. As local and long distance revenues are expected to grow more rapidly than revenues for the
Company's enhanced communications services, the Company anticipates that, oser the neat five years, local
and long distance revenues will account for a significantly higher percentage of total revenues

I'he development of the Company’s businesses and the construction, acqinsition and expansion of 118
networks require significant expenditures, o substantial portion of which are incurred before the realization of
revenues. These expenditures, together with the associated carly operating expenses, resull in negative vash
flow until un adequate customer base is established. However, as the customer hase groms, the Company
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expects that incremental revenues can be generated with decreasing incremental operating expenses, which
may provide positive contributions to cash flow. The Company has made the strutegic decision to build high
capacity networks with broad market coverage, which imtially increases ats level of capital expenditures and
aperating hosses. The Company believes that over the long term this will enhance the Company s hinancral
performance by increasing the traflic flow over the Company’s networks. The Company has recently entered
inte leased dark fiber and fiber capacity arrangzments, which allow the Compuny, by installing one or more
switches and related electronics, to enter a market prior 1o completing construction of its own fiber optic
network

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was i limited lability company that was classihed and tased as g
partnership for federal and state income tax purposes, As of January 31, 1997, the Company was subject 1o
federal and state income tas,

Hesulrs of Operations
Year Lnded December 31, 1997 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 1996

Revenue increased 124% to $57.6 million in 1997 from $25.7 mullion in the same penod in 1996 The
inerease was primarily due to 45% growth in the Company’s local and long distance services (both switched
and resale ). dedicated services and enhanced communications services, as well as due to recording . lull year's
revenue from 1TC, o switch-based long distance reseller acquired in December 1996, To o lesser extent, the
acquisitions of Start Technologies Corporation (*start™) and Chadwick Telecommunications Corporation
{*Chadwick”™) in the fourth quarner of 1997 also contnibuted to the increase in revenue. Revenues reported in
1997 included $38.9 million derived from local and long distance, competitive access, dedicated line services
and shared tenant services and $18.7 million derived from enhunced communications services, pnmanly VR,
The Company’s IVR subsidiary contributed 27% and 52% of the Company™s revenues during 1997 and 1990,
respectively. The revenues generated by this subsidiary have tended to fluctuate on a guarter to quarter hasis
as the revenues are generally event dnven and seasonal in nature,

The Company began offering switched local and long distance services an seven ol its markets in
July 1996, and m 18 additional markets duning 1997, In addition, the Company has ollered dedicated hine
services sinee January 1995 and has resold Centrex access lines since Apnl 1995 The Company increased i
guarterly customer access line installation rate from 1,604 in the fourth quarter of 19%6 10 19187 duning the
fourth quarter of 1997. As of December 31. 1997, the Company had 50,131 access hines in service, compared
o 8,500 as of December 31, 1996, Revenues Tfrom the provision of such services are expecied to continue 1o
mcrease s component of twotal revenues over future periods. Access hines inoservice includes those Tines
which are provided through resale of Centrex services, the number of which is decrensing over time us the
Company converts those cuslomers o its own nelwork

Operating expenses conaist of costs directly related to providing Licilities-hased network and enhanced
communications services and also include salanies and benefits and related costs of operations and engincenng
personnel. Operating expenses increased 115% in 1997 to $54.0 mullion, an increase of $28.9 million over the
same period in 1996, These inereases were attributed to Gactors that include an increase in netwaork cosls
related to the provision of increased volumes of local, long distance and enhanced communications services
and the Company's increase in emplovees as well as other related costs primanly 1o expand the Company’s
swilched Tocal and long distunce service businesses in its existing and planoed markets. Addinonally, the
ellects of the TTC acquisition in December 1996 and the two acquisitions in the fourth guarter of 1997 further
resulied in an increase in 1997 operating expenses over those of the prnor sear.

Sclling. general and administrative expenses (“SG&A™) include salanes and related personnel conts,
fucilitics expenses, sales and marketing, consulting and legal fees and equity in loss of affiliates. SG&A
increased 142% for the vear ended December 31, 1997 ax compared 1o the corresponding period in 19%6. The
increase was pnmanly due to the Company’s increase in employees and other costs associated with the
expansion of the Company’s switched local and long distance service businesses in s exnsting and planned
markets, as well us the 1TC acquisition,




hroadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for the
deployment of wireless local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadeasting senaces Tuo hoenses will
be awarded in cach of 491 BT As when the austion is conclnded Although the numban of B that piay ix
awarded to NE S TIANED s limited by the amwount of the deposit, NEXTBAND has applicd for amd s ehgible
to bid on any of the markets being auctioned for the block A license (1,150 MH2z of spectrum) and the hlock
B license (150 MHz of spectrum).

The Company is exploring LMDS for two reasons. Depending upon the bidding and deployment cost,
LMDS may offer an economically efficient means 1o supplement the Company’s liber nctwork huild-oat in
some localities. In addition, a wircless local loop alternative may create competitive pressure on high
unbundled loop costs in certain areas. There can be no assurance that NEXTBAND s participation in the
auction will result in the purchase of any LMDS licenses or that LMDS spectrum for wircless connectivily
will provide a cost-cfTective and efficiently engincered means 1o connect 1o end wser locatwns, 1
NEXTLINK's bids are successful, the purchase price of the licenses and the costs of building vut any such
wireless systems could be substantial,

In November 1997, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Start, a ~aared fenant servives
provider serving commercial buildings in Dallas, Austin and Corpus Chrnisti, Texas and Phocm, Anzona
Services offered by Start include local and long distance scrvices, Internel access and customer premise
equipment mansgement. Start currently provides services under long term contracts to 6K corporate
customers, or approximately 13,000 end users. The Company paid consideration for the transaction consisting
of $20.0 million in cash, 441,336 shares of Class A common stock and the assumplion of approvimitely
$5.3 million of liabilitics, the majority of which were repad.

In October 1997, the Company acquired all of the vutstanding shares of Chadwick, a switch-tased long
distance reseller in central Pennsylvania, through a merger transaction between Chadwick and a wholly owned
subsidiary of NEXTLINK. Chadwick serves approximately 11,500 customers throughout the ventral and
castern Pennsylvania regions. The Company issued consideration for the transaction consisting of i proinissory
note payable in the aggregate principal amount of $5.0 million (which was repand in full January 1998),
357,151 shares of Class A Common Stock and the repayment of long term debt and other habilities totaling
$6.6 million, The merger agreement also provides for additional payments of up o a auamum ol 192,563
shares of Class A Common Stock over a two year period, with these payments being contingent upon the
acquired operation achieving specified performance goals.

In September 1997, the Company entered into a definiive agreement Lo acquire certuin telecommunici-
tions assets of Unicom Thermal Technologies, Inc. (“UTT"), including two existing route miles of network
plus 13 miles of conduit in downtown Chicago. The Company also has the nght to participate in the ungomng
expansion of UTT's network in Chicago. The existing network currently provides connectivity 1o 2N huildings
The Company agreed 10 pay $2.5 million in cash, plus up to an additional $560,00 Tor the aeguisition ul
certuin additional telecommunications facilities. The Company will also be required to pay certaim addimonal
consideration 1o UTT for a portion of the network expansion costs, up to $3.4 million in cash plus the issuance
of up to 60,022 shares of Class A Common Stock.

In June 1997, the Company e¢ntered into an eight year exclusive agreement, with an option o renew for
five additional years, with a company that has excess fiber capacity in cach of Athanta, Chicago. New York
City, Newark (NJ) and Philadelphia which it agreed to make available to the Compuany in cach of those
markets at a substantial discount to the wholesale rates charged by other vendors of capacity. In addition 1o
the capacity arrangement described above, the Company also has entered into a 20-year lease of capacity over
an existing 47-mile fiber network in New York City, which extends from the Wall Street arca north 10
midtown Manhattan. In June 1997, the Company paid $11 million in full satisfaction of its obhgations undet
this lease, $6 million of which was placed in escrow pending completion of certain building connections by the
lessor. As of December 31, 1997, $4.1 million remained in escrow. These arrangements will allow the
Company 1o accelerate its entry into each of these markets by enabling the Company to avond a signiticant
portion of the infrastructure development and construction time that would atherwise be reguired to Lraunch
switched local and long distance services in these markets. Although these agreements have reduced the il
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capital expenditures necessary to enter these markets, the Company has not, as a sesult, reduced 1ty overall
planned capital expenditures through 1999

In June 1997, the Company also executed a definitive agreement to acquire an existing liber ophic
network in downtown Philadelphia in order 1o extend its existing network in Pennsylvania. The acquisition 1s
subject o regulutory and other consents and 15 anticipated to be consummated by the end of the second
quarter in 199%. During the interim period prior to closing, the Company is operating under a M hiber capacity
agreement with the seller.

On February 4, 1997, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of 1 inkatel,
a Los Angeles-bused competitive access telecommunications provider. At the time of acquisition. Linkatel
operated an 80 mile fiber optic telecommunications network covenng several markets in the Orange and Lo
Angeles county areas The total purchase price of $42.5 million consisted of a cash pasment of $36.1 mithon
{including the release of $6.0 million which was deposited into escrow dunng 1996} plus the repayment of
debt of $5.6 million and the assumption of net liabilitics totaling $O.8 million

In January 1997, the Company obtained rights-of-way to expand its exiting Salt Lake City network inlo
Provo and Orem, Utah. The Company has completed the cxpansion of this network 1o Prove and Orem and
began providing switched local and long distance services in Provo and Orem in September 1997

Prior 1o April 1996, the Company funded its expenditures with approximately $55 0 million of cash equity
investments from two entities that are controlled by Craig O. McCaw. On Apnl 25, 1996, the Company raised
gross proceeds of $3500 million through the issuance of 12V:% Scnior Notes due Apnl 15, 2006 (1205
Senior Notes™). The Company used $117.7 million of the gross procecds to purchase and hold in escrow us.
government securities, representing funds suthicient to provide for payment in full of interest on the 127
Senior Notes through April 15, 1999, and used an additional $32.2 million 1o repay certain advances and
accrued interest from Engle River, a company majority-owned and controlled by Mr. McCaw. In addition, the
Company incurred costs of $9.8 million in connection with the financing Interest pasments on the |05
Senior Notes are due senvi-annually

On January 31, 1997, the Company completed the sale of $285 million aggregate liquidation preference
of 14% senior exchangeable redeemable preferred shares (“Preferred Shares™) which, after deducting
issugnce costs, resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $274 million The Prelerred Shares
acerue dividends at the rate of 14% per annum. On or before February 1, 2002, dividends may, at the option of
the Company, be paid in cash or by issuing additonal Preferred Shares with an aggregate Dyuidaton
preference equal to the amount of such dividends. After February 1, 2002, didends must be paid in cash As
of December 31, 1997, the Company had issued an additional 622,031 shares of Preferred Shares an
satisfaction of the first three quarterly dividends.

Since inception and through December 1996, the Company has alw ssued Class A Units valued at
155 pulhon pomanly for the acguisition of certain telecommunications assels and busingsses, which Urnits
were converted to shares of Class B Common Stock of the Company on Junuarny 11, 1997

On October 1, 1997, the Company completed an initial public otienng (“TPO™) of 12,000,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock at a price of $17 per share. In addition, the underwnters of the 1PO) exeroised an
option to purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A Common Stock at the same price per share. Ciross
proceeds from the 1PO totaled $242.8 million, and proceeds net of underwnting discounts, advisony fees and
estimated expenses uggregated approximately $226.8 million, Concurrently with the 11O, the Company sold
$400 million in aggregate principal amount of 9%% Senior Notes due 2007, which, after deducting estimated
issue costs, resulted in net proceeds o the Company of approsimately $IEKS million. Interest pavinents on the
D% Sontor Notes are due semi-annually,

On March 1, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $335 million in aggregate poncipal amount of %%
Senior Notes due 2008 (9% Senior Notes™ ). Proceeds from the sale, net of discounts, underwnting
commissions, advisory fees and expenses, totaled approsimately $126.5 million. Interest payiments on the W5
Senior Notes are due sem-annually, beginning Seplember S
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The Company will use the remaining proveeds from the sale of Class A Common Stock, Y% Senor
Notes and 9% Senior Notes and existing unrestricted cash balances for expenditures relating o the
construction, acquisition and operation of telecommunications networks and service providers and the oflenng
of telecommunications services in those areas where the Company currenthy operates or imtends o operile
Lxpenditures for the construction and operation of netwaorks include (1) the purchase and instatlation of
switches and related electronics in existing networks and i networks 1o be consiructed or scquired i new or
adiacent markets: (i) the purchase amd mstallation of fiber optic cable and electromios o expand existing
networks and develop new networks, including the connection of new buldings. (nr) spectrum that may be
purchased during the LMDS auction that is currently ongoing. (iv) the deselopment of s comprehensine
information technology platform and (v) the funding of operating losses and workmg capital Fhe € ampany
may also acquire or invest in businesses that consist of existing networks or companies cogaged an husinesses
similar to those engaged in by the Company and its subsidiaries o other complementary businesses

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had unrestricted cash and imvestments of $742.4 aullion and
$1.068.9 million on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the sale of the 9% Sentor Notes The Company s
current plan contemplates an aggressive expansion into o number of new markets throughout the Vnited
States. The Company may pursue vanous alternabives for achievmg its growih strategy, indluding addinonal
network construction; additional leases of network capacity from third parts providens, acquisitions of exvisting
networks; and spectrum that may be purchased dunng the LMDS auction that i currentls ongong and
associated facilities construction and deployment if any spectrum is purchased. The Company also anticipates
that a substantial amount of additional capital expenditures will be muade in 1999 and hevand The Tunding of
these capital expenditures is expected to he provided by existing cash balances, Tuture vendor and/for credin
facilities. Tuture public or private sales of debt secunties. future sales of public or private wapital stock and poant
ventures. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be successtul i raing suthicient
additional capital on terms that it will consider acceptable or that the Company s operations will primduce
positive consolidated cash flow in sufficient amounts o meet s interest and dividend alligations on
vutstanding secunties. Failure to raise and generate sullivient funids may require the Company o delay or
abandon some of its planned future expansion or expenditures, which could have a matenal advense etlect on
the Company’s growth and its ability to compete in the telecommunications senvices indusir

In addition, the Company’s operating flexibility with respect 1o certan business matters i and will
continue 1o be, limited by covenants associated with the 120% Semor Notes, the 9955 Senior Notes and the
9% Senior Notes. Among other things, these covenants linnt the abubity of the Company and ity subsadiarics o
meur additional indebledness, create hiens upon asscts, apphy the proceeds from the disposal of assets, ke
dividend payments and other distributions on capital stock and redeem capital stock. In addition, the terms ol
the Preferred Shares contain certain covenants that may limit the Company™s operating lexbility with respedt
1o the incurrence of indebledness and tssuance of additional preferred shares. There can be no assurance that
sich covenants will not adversely affect the Company’s abilits to linance #s future operations or camital needs
or to engage in other business activities that may be in the mterest of the Company The € ompany was in

compliance with all covenants associated with the 1205 Senor Notes, the %5 Semor Notes and the
Preferred Shares as of December 31, 1997,

Impact of Year 2000

Certamn of the Company’s older computer systems and applications were witien o detine o piven veat
with abbreviated dates using the last two digits in o year rather than the entire fout digins As o result, thise
ssstems and applications have time-sensitive soliware that recognize an abbreviated sear UMY s the sean
1900 rather than the year 2000, This could cause a system Lature or msealculations sesulting i disruptions of
operations including, among other things, o temporans inabiliny 1o Process Tansie s, send mvoces oF engage
in other normal husiness activities,

The Company has received positive confirmation from its vendor that the Compant s Nortel DAMS S0
switches and related telecommunications equipment are Year 2000 compliant The Company s currently
assessing the extent of replacements or modilications necessary to certam ol ity ulder computer systems and
apphications so that such systems and appheations will properly ubilize dates bevond December 1, 1994 The

K




acquisition of telecommunications companics, the possible acquisition of EMDS spectrum and the construc-
tion and deployment of associated facilities, if such spectrum is purchased, the purchase of additional
switches, the offering of switched local and long distance servives, the intrduction of other new service
offerings and the development and implementation of a comprehensive information technology platform. The
Indenture docs not limit the amount the Company may invest in Restncted Subsidianes or certin joint
ventures engaged in one or more Telecommunications Businesses (including the yoint venture through which
the Company is participating in the LMDS auction) or the amount of Debt the Company may incur to fund
investments in Restricted Subsidiaries or such joint ventures. As of December 31, 1997, after giving pro forma
effect to the Offering. the amount of total consohidated latihities of the Company would have heen
approsimately $1.164.7 million,

The future funding requirements discussed above are based on the Company s vurrent estimates. There
can be no assurance that actual expenditures and funding requirements will not be sigmiticantly higher or
lower.

Risk Associated with Implementation of Growth Strategy

The expansion and development of the Company s operations tincluding the construgtion and acyuisition
of additional networks) will depend on, among other things, the Company’s ability to assess markets. identify,
finance and complete suitable acquisitions, design fiber optic network hackbone routes. imstall iber optic cable
and facilities, including switches, and obtain rights-of-way, butlding access nghts and any required government
authorizations, franchises and permits, all i a tmely manner, at reasonable costs and on sitilacion termns
and conditions. In addition, the Company has experienced rapid growth since its inception, and the Company
believes that sustained growth places a strain on operational, human and financial resources o wrder to
manage its growth, NEXTLINK must continue to improve its operating and administrative ssstems including
the continued development of effective systems relating 1o ordening, provisioning and billing for telecommunie
cations servives. NEXTLINK must also continie to attract and retain qualiied managenal. professional and
technical personnel. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to implement and
manage successfully its growth strategy. The Company’s growth strategy also involves the tolluwing ks

Qualified Personnel. NEXTLINK believes that i critical component for its suceess will be the atiraction
and retention of qualified managerial, professional and techmical personnel. Dunmng 1997 the Company has
experienced significant competition in the attraction and retention of personncl that possess the skl sets that
the Company is seeking. Although the Compaiy has been successful in attracting and retaiming qualified
personnel, there can be no assurance that NEXTLINK will not expertence a shortage of gualiicd pers mnel in
the future,

Switch and Equipment Instatlation An essential element ol the Company’s current strategy 1s the
provision of switched local service. There can be no assurance that the installation of the required switches,
fiber vptic cable and associated electronics necessary to implement the Company’s business plan will continue
to be completed on time or that, during the testing of these switches and related equipment. the Company wiil
not experience technological problems that cannot be resolved  The Lalure of the Company o install and
operite successfully additional switches and other network equipment could have o matenal adverse eflect
upon the Company’s ability 10 enter additional markets as o single source provider of telecommunications
services

Interconmection Agreements The Company has agrecments on is curremtly negoliahing agteements hor
the interconnection of ity networks with the networks of the 1LEC covenng cach market in which
NENTLINK cither has of is constructing a network. NEXTLINK mas be required to negotiate niew. of
rencgotiale exisling interconnection agreements as 1L enters new markets in the future There can be no
assurance that the Company will successfully negotiate such other agreements for interconnection with the
ILEC or renewals of existing interconnection agreements. The Lulure to negotite required interconnectim
agreements could have a material adverse effect upon the Company™s abulity 1o enter rapidly the telecommume:
cations market as a single source provider of telecommunications services
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Ordering, Provisioning and Billing. The Company has developed processes and procedures and 1s
working with external vendors, including the 1LECs, in the implementation ol customer arders for services,
the provisioning. installation and delivery of such services and monthly hilling for those services. In connection
with its development of a comprehensive information technology platform. the Company 1s developing and
implementing automated internal systems for processing customer orders and provisioning. Billing 1s provided
by unafliliated third-party vendors. The failure 1o develop effective internal provesses and systems for these
service elements or the failure of the Company's current vendors or the TLECs to deliver effectively ordering,
provisioning (including establishing sufficient capacity and facilities on the ILEC's networks to service the
Company ) and billing services could have a matenal adverse elfect upon the Company’s ability 1o achieve its
growih strategy.

Products and Services.  The Company expects to continue o enhance its systems in order to offer ns
customers switched local services and other enhanced products and services in all of its networks as quickly as
practicable and as permitted by applicable regulations. The Company believes its ability 1o offer, market and
sell these additional products and services will be important (o the Company’s ahility 1 meet its long-1erm
strategic growth objectives, but is dependent on the Company’s ability to abtain the needed capital. additional
favorable regulatory developments and the acceptance of such products and services by the Company's
customers, Nuo assurance can be given that the Company will be able to oblan such capital or that such
developments or acceptance will occur.

Acquisiions.  The Company intends to use the net provecds of the Offening to expand its networks and
service offerings through internal developmenis and acquisitions, which could be matenal. Such acquisitions,
if made. could divert the resources and management time of the Company and would require integration with
the Company's existing networks and services, There can be no assurance that any such acquisitions will occur
or that any such acquisitions, if made, would be on terms fuvorable 10 the Company or would be successfully
integrated into the Company's operations.

Need To Obtain And Maintain Franchises, Permits And Rights-Of-Way

In order to acquire and develop its networks the Company must obtain local franchises and other permiits,
as well as rights 1o utilize underground conduit and acnal pole space and other nghts-of-way and hiber capacity
from entities such as ILECs and other utilitics, railroads, Jong distance companies, state highway authornies,
local governments and transit authoritics, There can be no assurance that the Company will be able o
muintain its existing franchises. permits and rights or to obtain and maintain the other franchises, permits und
nghts nceded 1o implement its business plan on acceptable terms Although the Company docs not believe
that any of the existing arrangements will be canceled or will not be renewed as needed in the near future,
cancellation or non-renewil of certain of such arrangements could materially adversely affect the Company’s
business in the affected metropolitan area. In addition, the failure 1o enter into and maintain any such required
arcangements for a particular nctwork, including a network which is already under development, may atfect
the Company's ability to acquire or develop that network. See “Business — Company Network Architecture.”

Cuampetition

In cach of the markets served by the Company’s networks, the Company competes prncipally with the
ILEC serving that area. ILECs are established providers of local telephone services o all or virtually all
telephone subscribers within their respective service areas, ILECs abso have long-standing relationships with
regulatory authonties at the federal und state levels. While recent FCC administrative decisions andd initiatives
provide increased business opportunities to lelecommunications providers such as the Company. they also
provide the TLECs with increased pricing flexibility for their pnvate line and special access and switched
dccess services, In addition, with respect to compelitive access services (as opposed to switched local
excharge services), the FCC recently proposed a rule that would provide for increased ILEC pricing flexibility
and deregulation for such access services cither automatically or after certain competitive levels are reached.
If the ILECs are allowed by regulators to offer discounts to large customens through contract tanils, engage o
apgressive volume and term discount pricing praviives for their customers, and/or seek to charge competiors
excessive fees for interconnection to their networks, the imcome of competitors to the 1LECs, mcluding the




On December 31, 1997, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Tenas tssued
decision holding that Sections 271 through 275, including the long distance entry provisions, of the Telecom
Act are unconstitutional because they violate the separation of powers principles and bill of attumnder provision
of the U.S. Constitution, On February 11, 1998, the United States District Court for the Northern Distnct of
Texas granted the CLECs' request for a stay of the December 31, 1997 decision pending appeal to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. That appeal is currently pending. If the stuy is hifted, or if the
Fifth Circuit upholds the district court’s ruling. then the RBOCs would be free 1o enter the long di tance
market, providing additional competition 1o the Company’s bundled service offering. In addition, the district
court’s ruling would eliminate the long distance entry incentives under the Telecom Act that were designed to
promote interconnection between the ILEC and new competitors. The distict court's decision has heen
appealed by the U.S. government and a number of other intervenor,

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal telecommunica-
tions subsidy regime which both increase the size of existing subsidies and created new subsidy funds. In the
May 8 order, the FCC also announced that it will soon revise its rules for subsidizing service provided 1o
consumers in high cost arcas. The Company intends to make all subsidy paymer. o required by law. See
“Husiness — Regulatory Overview.”

On July 18, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit overturned many of the rules
the FCC had established pursuant to the Telecom Act governing the terms under which CLECs may, among
other things, interconnect with ILECs, resell ILEC services, lease unbundled ILEC network clements and
terminate traffic on ILEC networks. On October 14, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth
Circuit vacated the FCC'’s rule prohibiting ILECs from separating unbundled nctwork clements that are
already combined, except at the request of the CLECs. These eighth Circuit decisions substantially imit the
FCC’s jurisdiction and expands the state regulators’ junsdiction to sct and enforce rules governing the
development of local competition. As a result, it is more likely that the rules goverming local competition will
vary substantially from stute to state. Most states, however. have alrcady begun to establish rules for local
competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overturned by the Eighth Circuit. 10 patchwark of state
regulations were to develop, it could increase the Company’s costs of regulatory compliance and could make
competitive entry in some markets more difficult and expensive than in others. See “Business - Regulatony
Overview.”

Dependence on Large Customers

To date the Company has derived a substantial proportion of its revenues from certain large customers of
its competitive access services and its IVR enhanced communication service offenngs. the loss of one or more
of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's operating results. The Company’s 10 largest
customers accounted for approximately 25%, 51% and 66% of the Company’s revenues in 1997, 1996 and
1995, respectively. The Company docs not have long-term service contracts with most of these customers. The
Company will continue to be dependent upon a small number of customers for a substantial portion of 1ts
revenues until such time, if at all, as the Company generates substantial revenues from the provision of
switched local and long distance communications services

Rapid Technological Changes; Licenses

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid und significant changes in technology. The effect on
the Company of technological changes, including changes relating to emerging wircline and wircless
transmission and switching technologics, cannot be predicted. In oddition, the Company from time 1o time
receives requests to consider licensing certain patents held by third parties that may have bearing on its IVR
and virtual communications center services. The Company considers such requests on their ments, but has not
to date entered into any such license agreements. Should the Company be required 1o pay hicense fees in the
future, such payments, if substantial, could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company™ resulis of

operations.
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Dependence on Key Pervonnel

I'he Company’s businesses are managed by a small number of key execuline ollicers, the T ol ventanm o

whom could have a material adverse effect on the Company e € ommprpunnry sehiena s that i Tuibnans wrpe o 8 <l
I i I iy il -H*hllll'lt sl male o Dakban

AMuast ol thie executive aificers of the Campans, i luding the
presidents ol ity operating subsidianes, do not have employ ment agreenents Although the Company has been
suceessful in attracting and retaining qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that NEXTLINK will st
experience a shortage of qualified personncl in the future

l|l'1'l¢"l'|l| w Large paet om its alsiling o P annd i abiiliny tes it atisd

verain Bighly sb il aiml suialilival g pneniinia |

Variability of Quarterly Operating Revalts

As u iesult of the significant expenses associated with the expansion and development of its netwarks and
services and the vanability of the level of revenues generated through sales of NEXTLINKS IVR enhuanced
communications services, the Company anticipates that is operating results could vans sigmilicantly [rom
period to period,

Control by Mr. Craig ). McCaw; Potential Conflicts of Interests

Craig O. McCaw, pnmarily through his majoniy ownership and control of Fagle River Investments,
L.L.C., a Washington limited liability company (' agle River™). controls approvimately S2% of the
Company’s total voting power. As a resuls, Mr. McCaw has the ability 10 control the direction and Tulure
operations of the Company. Mr. McCaw 1s not an executive officer of the Company and. i addition to hiy
investment in the Company through Eagle River. Mr. MoCaw has signiticant insestments an other
communications companies, including Nextel Communications. Inc., Teledesic Corporation and € able Plus
Inc., some of which could compete with the Company as a single source provider vl telecommunivationy
services or act as a supplicr to the Company of certain telecommunications services. The Company does not
have a noncompetition agreement with either Mr McCaw or Eagle River. Mo MuCan i nal bownd by any
contractual restrictions against sales of the Company s commuon stoch

Patential Volatility of Stock Price

The market price of the Company’s common stock has been, and s ikely 1o contnue w be, volatile The

market price of the common stock could be subject 1o sigmificant Muctuations in response o a number ol
factors, such as actual or anticipated variations in the Company’s quarterly operating results, the introduction
of new products by the Company or its competitors, changes in other conditions of trends in the Company's
industry, changes in governmental regulations, changes in secuntics analysts” estimates ol the ¢ ORIy s, o
its competitors’ or industry’s, future performance or general markel conditions. In addition, stock markets
have experienced extreme price and volume volatility in recent sears, which has had a substantial effect on the
market prices of securities of many smaller public companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the aperating
performance of such companies.

tiem 7. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are hiled under this lem. beginning on page 44 0

this Report, and of NEXTLINK Capital arc filed under this ltem, heginming on Page 61 of this Report

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Discloyure

None,
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PART IN

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of the executive oflicers and members of the
Company's hoard of directors. Their respective backgrounds are described following the table

M Agr Ponithan

Steven W Hooper(3) ... 45 Chatrman of the Board of Directons

Wivne M. Perry(1) ....... 48 Vice Chairszan and Chief Executive Mhicer

James F. Yoelker(l) ...... 47 President and Director

George M. Tronsruc 111 41 Chiel Operating (ilicer

Jan Loichle ..... . S0 Vice Presudent. € el of Lawal Fachange
Operations

Kathleen H. Iskra ........ 41 Vice President, Chiel Financial Otheer and
Treasurer

K. Bruce Laster, Jr 2y ) Vice Presdent, General Counsel and Secretany

Charles P, Daniels - 4] Vice President, Chiel Technology Otheer

Michael J. McHale, Jr. .. .. 4] Vice President, Chiel Markenng Ollicer

R. Gerard Salemme . . .. 44 Vice President. External Aflars and Indusin
Kelations

Craig O, McCaw ; AN Director

Dennis Weiblingi Lyi 200 4) 4 Ihrcctier

Scol Jarvis(2) .. . Lk Iirecion

William A. Hoglund(1)i2) dd Ihrecton

Sharon L. Nelson(3) . ... .. 51 Director

Jeffrey 5. Raikes ; L Director

(1) Member of the Executive Commiliee
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee
(1) Member of the Audit Committee

The following persons are the presidents of the Compam’s uperating subsudianes

Name Apr Losttion

Hugh C. Cathey ... ... .. 47 Presadent of NEXTLINK O, L1 C

Don Hillenmever 52 President of NEXTLINK Tennessee, 1 1(
Jefl C. Stone ... 40 President of NEXTLINK Enreractve, L LA
Dwayne Nielson . .. . 41 President of NEXTLINK Unab, 1L (

Gary Rawding . . . . 46 President of NEXTLINK Pennsyloanu, L1
Danald W. Sessamen : i President of NEXTLINK Californa, 11«
Richard Kingston 1}.] Presudent of NEXTLINK Hhinos, Inc

Dircctors of the Company are elected annually at the annual meeting of sharcholders The next annual
meeting of sharcholders is scheduled for May 1995 All of the oflicers identitied above serve at the discretion
of the Board of Directors of the Company. There are no famuly relationships between any person identilicd
above.

The Audit Commitiee is responsible Tor reviewing the servives provided by the € ompany s independent
auditors, consulting with the independent auditors on audits and proposed audits of the Company and
reviewing the need for internal auditing procedures and the adegquacy of internal controls. The Compensation

1%




Jan Loichle. Ms. Loichle has been Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange Operations of NEXTLINK
since October 1996. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was the President of NEXTLINK Solutions (the virtual
vommunications center) from July 1995 Pror o joiming NEXTLINK, Ms Lowchle was Ixecutive Yike
Presudent wt LS. Signal in Detroit and Grand Rapids, Michigan from Aprl T8t Juls 1995 AL 5 Signal
Ms. Loichle led the development of an enhanced service platform (Mo Sumbery from concept theough
production system and implementation. From 1990 1 1993, Ms. Loichle swas Assistant Ve President ol
Finance for SP Telecom in San Francisco. Prior to that, Ms. Laichle was Vice President of Pinancial
Operations for Lexite!l/ Allnet/ ALC in Birmingham. Michigan from December 1980 1o Outober 1959

Kuathleen H. Iskra. Ms. Iskra has been Vice Preudent, ( hiel Financal Oihicer amd Treasurer of
NEXTLINK since January 1996, Prior to that, she was President and Chief Executive Otheer of Honeen A,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Alaska Air Group. Prior to her appointment at Honzon Ave M bihra served s
stall Viee President of Finance and Controller of Alaska Adrlines and Alaska Air Group. Ms, Bshra's service
with Alaska began in 1987, when she was appomted Controller. Prior to joroing Alaska, she was an audit
munager with Arthur Andersen.

R. Bruce Easter, Jr. Mr. Easter has been Vice President, General Counsel and Seoretany ol
NEXTLINK since January 1995, From 1986 to December 1994, Mr. Easter was an associate and then
partner in the law firm of Davis Wright Tremaine in Seattle, Wishington, where he focused on conmunic-
tions luw and media matters,

Charles P. Daniels. Mr. Daniels has been Vice President, Chiel Technology Ofhcer since July 10497
Prior to that, Mr. Daniels was Vice President, Chiel Marketing Otheer of NEXTLINK from November 1995
From 1992 10 1995, Mr. Danicls worked for MCI where he was the founder and Program Manager of the
nciwork MCI Developers Lab. Mr. Daniels was also a founding member of MOUs Advanced Technology
Group. Prior o joining MCL, Mr. Danicls worked for Manufucturers Hunover Trust from 1989 1o 1992 as
Vice President/Strategic Technology and Rescarch, where he was responsible for evaluating ard implement-
ing new technologies that either reduced costs or generated new revenuce,

Michael J. MclHlale. Je. Mr. McHale has been Vice Preswdent, Chiel Marketing Otheer since Novem-
ber 1997. Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Mcllale served as Vice President and General Manager of the
Phocnix market and Regional Vice President at Teleport Communications Group, Ine Trom PR developing
the Phoenix market from its inception. Prior to that, from 1991 1o 1993, he was Vice Presdent. Product
Marketing and Development at MES Intelenet, Inc. and was responsible for planning and implementing
MES's initial introduction of switched services in New York Ciny

R. Gerard Salemme. Mur. Salemme has been Yice Pressdent, Eaternal Allaes amd Industes: Relations
since July 1997, Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Salemme was Vice President, Gunernment A
AT&T Corp. from December 1994, Prior to joining AT&T Corp., Mr. Salemime was Senior Vice President.
External Affairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991 10 December 19494

Craig O, McCaw.  Mr. McCaw has been a director of the Company since September FRR and wan © hicl
Executive Officer of NEXTLINK from September 1994 10 July 21 1997, M. MoCaw s also © haamman and
Chicl Exccutive Officer of Eagle River, o company formed and owned by M MoCaw to make strategic
investments in telecommunications ventures. Mr. McCaw was the founder, Charman and € il Eaecunve
Officer of McCaw Cellular, the nation’s leading provider of wireless communications services, until the
company was sold to AT&T in August 1994 Prior 1o cntenng the cellular telephone business in 1983,
Mr. McCaw was requested by his family to assume responsihiliny for the duily operations ol 4 small cable
television operation in Centralia, Washington, that he and his three brothers vwned. The oae-system aperation
serving 4,000 subscribers eventually grew to he the nation’s J0th Largest cable operator servng 450,060
subscribers. In 1974, the cable company’s services expanded by entering the paging and conventional mohile
telephone industnies. The company eventually became the hith Largest pagimg operator in the countn. serving
approximately 120,000 subscribers in 13 states. In 1951, the company began o develop broamd based celluba
telephone services. Later, McCaw Cellular became the nation’s largest cellular telephone operator. with
cellular system positions in more than 100 LS. cities, representing more than 100 million potential customers
The company also had interests in wireless data transmissions, personal communications serices, air-1o-



prommd phone svstems and satellite communications at the time of its sale to AT&T. Mr MoCaw s one al the
Pwar prii il vnwes of  Teleddesiec Corporation, which in March 1994 announved plans for o worldwide
salellite-based telecommunications systenn Me Mot s bw pnBine iy oosapmnihe ant st bhalider o lirector anil
Chairman of the Operating Committee of Neatel Commumications, T o prociton ol sl oo felcamminm
cations services. Mr. McCaw is also o director of Cuble Plus, Inc

Dennis Weibling. Mr. Weibling has been o director of the Company since Lanuary 1997 and had been
Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since September 1994 Mr. Weibling 15 also President of Fagle
River, Inc., since October 1993, Mr. Weibling is a director and member of Neatel Communications, Incs
Board of Directors and operations, audit and compensation committiees. Neatel i o dcading provider o
integrated wircless communications services tor teams of mobile workers. Mr. Weibling serves on the boand
and exccutive commiltee of Teledesic Corporation, a satellite telecommunications company backed by
Mr. McCaw and Microsoft founder Mr, William Gates, Mr. Weibling is a director of Cable Plus, one of the
leading providers of private cable television and telephony service 1o residential apartment compleses.
A licensed certified public accountant in Washington, Mr. Weibling 1s o member of the Amencan Society of
Centified Public Accountants and the Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants. In addition,
Mr. Weibling is a licensed attorney in Ohio and a member of the Amencan Bar Association and Ohio State
Bar Association. Mr, Weibling is also a member of the Exccutive, Compensation and Audit Commitices ol
the Board of Dircctors.

Scot Jarvis. Mr. Jarvis has hbeen a director of the Company since January 1997 and. prior 1o that, had
been Exccutive Vice President of NEXTLINK since September 1994, and was o Vice Presdent of Eagle
River, Inc. from October 1994 through Apnl 1996, Mr. Jarvis is the co-founder and since March 1997 has
been a member of Cedar Grove Partners, L.L.C, Prior to that, Mr. Jarvis was the acting President of the
Company from September 1994 1o April 1995. Prior o joiming Lagle River, Inc, Mr Jarvis served as Vice
President of McCaw Development Corporation from 1993 1o 1994 and of McCaw Cellular from 1945 through
1994, During his tenure at McCaw Cellular, Mr. Jarvis served in the positions of General Manager Trom 1590
to 1993, Vice President of Acquisitions and Development from 1988 1o 1990 and Assistant Vice President
from 1985 to 1988, Mr. Jarvis also recently served on the Hoard of Directors or executive committees of:
NEXTEL Communications, Inc., PriCellular Corporation, Honson Cellular Group. Los Angeles Cellular
Telephone Company, Cellular 2000 Partnership, Cybertel Cellulur Telephone Company 151 Loun), North-
west Cellular Partnership, and Movitel del Noroeste (Mexico Region). Mr Jarvis has also served as the
President of the Iberia Cellular Telephone Company from 1991 1o 1994 M1 Jarvis 15 also o member of the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

William A. Hoglund. Mr. Hoglund has been a director of the Company since Fanuary 1997 amd, prioe to
that, had been Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since February 1996 Mr Hoglund s also Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Eagle River, Inc. since January 1996, Prior to joiming Eagle River.
Inc.. Mr. Hoglund was Managing Director of LP. Morgan & Co. in 11s investment hanking group
Mr. Hoglund was employed by J.P. Morgan & Co. from 1977 through 1995, focusing fur the past nine years on
clients in the telecommunications, ¢cable and media industries, Mr. Hoglund 15 also i member of the | secutive
and Compensation Committees of the Board of Directors.

Sharon 1. Nelson  Ms. Nelson has been director of the Company since September 1997 and, prior to
that, was Chairman of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (“"WUTC™) from Febru-
ary 11, 1985 until her resignation on August 15, 1997 Pror to serving on the WUTE . My Nelson served as
stafl coordinator for the Washington State Legislaturc’s Joint Select Committee an Telecommunications
(1983 10 1985}, an attomey in private practice ( 1982 1o 1983}, legi-lative counsel to the Consumers Union ol
the United States (1978 to 1981), stall counsel 1o the Commerce Committee of the LS. Senate (1976 o
1978) and secondary school teacher of lstory and anthropology (1969 1o 1973}, Ms. Nelwon is also the past
president of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners. My Nelwwn also served on the
Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service created under the Telecom Actand as one of the 20-member
negotiating team appointed by the Governors of Washington, Idaho, Oregon and Maontana 1o review the
Northwest electric power system. Ms, Nelson is also a member of the Audit Commuttec of the HBoard of
Directors.
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Jeffrey 8. Raikes. Mr. Raikes has heen a director of the Company since September 1997 He v alo o
member of the Executive Committee and the Group Vice President, Sales and Murketing of Micnosaol
Corporntion As Cirnpy Vice Pressdeot, 8 ks T esponsitnliny b Ahcrosol s sorlibwide costorier uity
as well an sales, marketing support and service i the United States and Canadie Prior o joiming the
Exccutive Committee in July 1996, Mr. Raikes was Senior Vice President of Microsoft North Amenca since
1993, Prior to serving as Senior Viee President of Microsolt North Amenca, from 1990, Mr. Raikes was Vice
President of Office Systems, where he was responsible for the development and marketing of word processing,
workgroup applications and pen computing. From 1984 1o 1990, Mr. Raikes was the Director of Applications
Marketing, where he was the chiel strategist behind Microsoft's graphical apphcations for the Apple
Mucintosh and Microsoft Windows as well as leading the product strategy and design of Microsoft Otfice.
Mr. Raikes is also a member of the University of Nebraska Foundation and a Trustee of the Washington State
University Foundation

The following individuals are the sentor management of the Company™s subsidianes

Hugh € Cathey, Mr, Cathey has been the President of NEXTLINK Ohio since August 1996, Prior o
joining NEXTLINK. Mr. Cathey had nearly 20 years of experience in the telecommunications industry
Mr. Cathey was President and Chiel Exccutive Olticer of Dhgital Network, Inc., a publicly traded, facilitics-
based long distance company based in Dallas, Texas. From 1989 1o 1993, Mr. Cathey served as President and
Chief Exccutive Officer of United Telemanagemeni. Inc. Prior to that, Mr. Cathey held sales and product
management positions of increasing responsibility with AT&T, culminating as the senior executive of a
business unit of AT&T with annual revenues of approximately $100 million. During Mr. Cathey's tenure at
United Telemanagement, Inc., that company filed a petition under the Federal hankruptey laws.

Don  Hillenmever. Mr. Hillenmeyer has been the Presidemt of NEXTLINK Tennessee since
March 1995, Prior to joining NEXTLINK in March of 1995, Mr. Hillenmeyer was president of MCMG, Inc.
a Nashville-based wireless communications management consulting and operations firm specializing in
running Rural Service Areas for independent cellular telephone owners. Before founding: MOMUG, e,
Mr Hillenmeyer held various senior management positions at MeCaw Cellular and was responsible for
13 southern states from August 1986 o February 1990,

Jefi C. Stone. Mr. Stone has been the President of NEXTLINK Interactive (the IVR subsidiary ) since
August 1, 1997, Prior 1o joining the Company, Mr. Stone was Vice President and Ciencral Manager for the
Western Region of WorldCom, Inc. (previously MES Telecom, Inc.) from 1994 1o July 1997 Pror to that,
from 1989 to 1994, Mr. Stone wus the Director of Sales and Marketing of Associated Communications of
Los Angeles.

Dwavne Nielson, Mr. Niclson has been President of NEXTLINK Utah since Februan 1996 Prior o
joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Niclson was Assistant Vice President, Consumer and Small Business Murket, at
Sprint Corporation from October 1994 to Februany 1996 Prior to that, from August 1985 through
October 1994, Mr. Nielson held o variety of sales and marketing positions at Sprint and United Telephone.

Gary Rawding. Mr. Rawding has been President of NEXTLINK Pennsylvania since September 1994
Prior to founding Penns Light Communications, Inc.. certin assets of which were acquired by the € ompany
in September 1994, he served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing at astern Telelogic Corporation
from 1989 until 1993, Prior to joining Lastern TeleLogic, Mr. Rawding held vanous posiions with Bell
Atlantic Corporation.

Donald W. Sessamen. Mr. Sessamen has been President of NEXTLINK California since Novem-
ber 1996, Prior to that, Mr. Sessamen acted as @ consultant to NEXTLINK. Prior to acting as a consultant to
the Company, Mr. Sessamen joined Brooks Fiber California in 1994 as President, after the company acquired
Phoenix Fiberlink. At Brooks Fiber California, Mr. Sessamen completed the installation of the San Jose
system and managed the entry into switched services in the Sucramento market. From 1991 10 1994,
Mr. Sessamen was Executive Vice President of Opentions, Engincering and MIS at SP Telecom, a iber optic
systems construction and wholesale transmission company using Southern Pacilic Ratioad sghits ol -way casl
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounis)

ASSETS

_December M, __
e
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... ........ . e Bk aars § IK00T4 § 76,507
Murketable securilies .. ...... .. oo A i L P A () , 351,281 47,713
Accounts receivable, DEl. .. .coivinnrsinrciiiiniiiniiiiaiaaeins 12,955 7.008
EMBRE s aias alemiaiiicii s e bia o bia s i s 4,510 07
Pledged secunitics .. ..cvciviiiiiamnaiiiiiiias - . 41,425 19 770
Total current assels. ......... Rrr e . i Kil.267 171,905
Pledged securities . ........ccviiiainininniicaa. TR P R 21,185 61,668
Property and equipment, net . ..o i A wes 251,651 97,784
Goodwill, net ... oovviieiiinrinnans e o 52178 24010
Other assels, Nl ..o u oo iiianns i = K770 15,216
Total assets .. ... i , $1.217,153 $ 16K 1
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounis payable .. ..oviaiin i iadisane i $ 2077 5 IN622
Accrucd EXPENSES . ... eeeaaa e ; 11082 4,112
Notes payable ... iveinrvarrannnss LI —
Accrued interest payable .......... ... -, . pemineafbrm B 15,880 9.250
Current portion of capital lease obligations ... .. .. i 2610 1,194
Payable 10 affiliate .......ccovvrmrnnnnaaiiaas. - 1.500
Total current Babilities ... 0 582 14.678
Long-termdebt ..........ocooviininniiiant = . ez T, 0 FS0,000
Capital lease obligations . . ....oovvviiiiainiiairians : 7.6-4) 6,262
Deferred compensation . . .......... ... TR 1,289
Other long-term liabilities .. .................... . : B A R 2850
Total liabilities. ... .covviiaiiiaiiiniiiar e, e K10,401 404,079
Commitments and contingencies
Minorty interests ..., . R n s
Redeemable preferred stock (par value $0.01 per share, aggregate liquidation
preference $323,478; 6,322,031 and 0 shares issued and outstanding in 1997
and 1996, respectively). ... AT - . R
Class B common stock, subject to redemption (par value $0.02 per share, S19.950
and 0 shares issucd and outstanding in 1997 and 1996, respectively ) 4950
Equity units subject to redemption (0 and 397,202 umits outstanding in 1997
and 1906 TERPECTIVEINY .. <o cacadsnshnassiiomianniaiesaiossse 4,950
Sharcholders’ equity (deficit):
Common stock, par value $0.02 per share, stated at amounts paid in, Class A,
110,314,000 shares authorized, 19,167,899 and 0 shares issued and
outstanding in 1997 and 1996, respectively; Class B, 34,133,600 shares
authorized, 33,746,573 and O shares issued and outstanding in 1997 and
1996, respectively . .......... T N TR . 110,561
Deferred compensalion. . . .....ooivurianirenos e (9,596) —_
Accumulated deficit .. ...ooiiiiiin P P S P e e (R (282,508) (K4, 181}
Members” capital (28,154,509 units, all of which arc outstanding in 1996) S 65,527
Fotal shureholders” equity (delicit) . e __ GRAM (15,654)
Total habilities and sharcholders’ equity (dehcit) . $1.217.153 § 190,681

See aeeompanying notes 1o comsolidated financial statements
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
{Dollars in thousands)

Walance at December 3, 1995

Cominbwted capital

Pvstianve of uniis bor NEXTLINK Chio
acyuisition .

lmpact of rcmpn.;hulmn am.l mcrucr of
afliliates .

Net loas . e

Balance at December ]I 1996 ..

Merger of NEXTLINK Communications,
L.L.C with and into NEXTLINK
Communications, Inc 2

Conversion of Equity Option Plan into
Employee Stock

Issuance of compensatory stock oplions

Compensation attributable 1o stock urlllum
vesting

Issuance of common stock under Ir..nmg
arrangement . rrmchd

Issuance of common :lu.& up:m caercise uf
stock oplions

Issuance of common mnh in ll'lltml puhl!x
offering : ;

Sule of common n.luct by ullmg
sharcholder in initial public offering

Issuance of common stock in acguisitions

Conversion of Class B common stock into
Class A common stock

Loans 1o oflicers lor come tanes paid
upon exercise of stock options |

Cumulative redeemable preferred stock
dividends and accretion of preferred
stock redemption uhlt;.ﬂm. m-.ludmp
1sale Coals

Met Juss

Balance at December 31, 1997

See accompanying notes to consolidated linancial statements

Common Stock
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{ Dollars in thousands)

 Year Ended December 31,

_w 1w9e
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
N O 5 i v AT A e T W T ... $(129004) § (TLION)
Adjustments to rr:com.llc nel loss 1o net cash used in operating :ulmuu
Deferred compensation expense .. ......... Ao e A i 1,247 PR
Equity in loss of afliliates ..o iiiioiiaiies : 2544 1,100
Depreciation and amortization . m i BT 27.1%0 10,340
Minority interests in loss of mnmlldﬂcd whﬂdmnn : . (285} (144
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from a:qummrm
Accounts receivable . . ... ... ... ER TP s (11,206) (1,659)
OUhEr CUTTENT 83818, . . . iuvesnnannasiacsannernnsnnssssss it (1.95}) i42)
Other loNg-1ermM ASSCI8 ..o vn s srrarncrssrassoneietises EteRerT (1,208) (1,430)
Accounts payable . ........000 N S e oo 4116 991
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . .. P Lo . 2444 2,416
Accrued interest payable............000 00, SR e o 9630 9.250
Net cash used in operating activities ... . ... (94,495) (40.563)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment . : S (142,170) {51.920)
Investment in assets of acquired hunnuscs {m:t of ...uh m.qulrcdj ........... (61,6049) (15,169)
Cash withdrawn from (placed into) escrow to be used in business acquisition (LY AL
Investments in unconsolidated aflilintes Y . i (s, Tty ) (4.95%)
Purchase of pledged securities ....... .o iieieriiimiiiaciaiiianans - — (117,6KK)
Maturity of pledged securities . ..........ociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiens 319,920 16411
Purchase of marketable securities, net. .........oooouei s cveesiaensss  _(305,570) _ (43,913)
Net cash used in investing activities .. ... pin o A S Vad v (470,195) (227,012)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable preferred stock . il 274,000 -
Capital contributions .. .. .. e - 9915
Proceeds from payable to aﬂihatn ..... T P R - 28,766
Repayment of payable to affiliates ......ooovviaioon, Wi —— (1.500) 133,703
Repayment of capital lease obligations .. ..o 0 (1.939) (7171
Repayment of notes payable . .. ... ... SRS (5.926) -
Bank overdrafl .........cccieiavanmnnnnnrnsnnns R W - (1,373)
Net proceeds from sale of common stock ... ...ooooononn s . A 226,760 -—
Proceeds from sale of senior notes . ... .. 400, (K0 150, (0K)
Proceeds from issuance of commeon stock upon exercise uf llul.l. oplions. . .. s
Costs incurred in connection with financing ... ........ .. ..o i . (11,728) (v.822)
Loans to officers for income taxes paid upon exercise of stock options ... .. . (2.425) -
Net cash provided by financing activities ., ..............o .o KT6,957 343,032
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ... ....... . 112,267 75,457
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year.............. . 16,807 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year. .. ......cocurrrrirnrrnranreene, $ 189,074 $ 76807
e >

Sece accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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NEXTLINK Communlications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 1997 and 1996

I Organiration and Description of Business

Ihe consolidated finuncial statements include the accounts of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc, 4
Washington corporation, and its majority-owned subsidianes (collectively reterred to as the Company). The
Company, through predecessor entitics, was formed on September 16, 1994 and. through its subsidianes,
provides competitive local, long distance and enhanced telecommunications services in selected markets in the
United States. The Company 15 a majonity-owned subsidiary of Lagle River Investments, L L.C. (hagle
River).

The competitive local telecommunications service business s a capital intensive business. The develop-
ment of the Company's businesses and the installation and expansion of s networks regquire sigmificant
expenditures, a substantial portion of which must be made before any resenues may be realized These
expenditures, together with the associated carly operating expenses, have resulted in negative cash flow and
operating losses, which have been substantially financed with the proceeds from pubhic sales of debt and equity
secuntics

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Puolicies
FPrinciples of Consolidation

The Company's financial statements include 100% of the assets. habilities and results of operations of
subsidianes in which the Company has a controlling interest of greater than SIF5 The ownership anterests ol
the other members or partners in such subsidianies are reflected as nunonty nterests The Company »
investment in Telecommunications of Nevada, L.L.C., (Nevada L.L.C) a limted hability company in which
the Company has a 40% intcrest and which operates a network that 1s managed by the Company in Las Vepas,
Nevada, is accounted for on the equity method. Investments in entities in which the Company has voting
interests of not more than 20% are accounted for on the cost method. Al significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liguid investments with matunties of three months or less at the time
of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Muarkctible securities consist of LLS, government and other secunties with onginal matunties beyond
three months. Marketable securities are stated ot cost, adjusted Tor discount accretior and premium
amortization. The securities in the Company’s portfolio are classified as “held to matunty,” as munagement
has the intent and ability to hold those securities to matunty. The fair value of the Company’s marketahle
sceuntics approximates the carrying value.

Pledged Necurities

In connection with the sale of 12%% Secnior Notes (seec Note 6), a portion of the net proceeds was
utilized 1o purchase a portfolio consisting of US. government secunties, which mature at dates sutlicient o
provide for payment in full of interest on the 12% Semor Notes through Apab 150 1999 The pledged
sechirities are stated at cost, adjusted for premium amortization and accrued interest The Lur value of the
pledged securities approximates the carrying value
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 3, 1997 and 1996
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Direct costs of construction are capitalized, including
$1.793,000 and $853,000 of interest custs related to construction durning 1997 and 1996, respectively
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assels

Estimated useful lives of property and eguipment are as follows

Telecommunications networks ... . cooos 5220 vears
Office equipment, furniture and other i -5 yeun
Leasehold improvements. .. . .. . . the lesser ol the

extimated uselul lives
ur the termis ol the
lcases

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily represent costs allocated n acquisitions o customer bases and contracts,
software and related intellectual property and goodwill, Intangible assets are amuortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the wsets as follows:

Customer conlracts ... .. S o term of the contracts
Customer bases, .. .. ! 4 yoamn

Software and related intellectual property § yeurs

Goodwill . ....ovvrvvnrrversnais . ; 15:20 yean

Costs incurred in conncction with securing the Company’s debt facilities. including underwnting and
advisory fees and other such cosis, are deferred and amortized over the term of the inancing using the
straight-line method.

Income Taxes

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was organized and operated as o limated hability company that
was classified and taxed as a partnership for federal and stute income tax purposes. Eifective Felbinuan 1, 17,
the Company hecame subject to federal and state income Lives dircetly as a4 C corparation

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisioms of Statemeat o Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™ (SEAN 14), which reguires that delerred
income tiaxes be determined based on the estimated future tax elfects of differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and labilities gaiven the provisions of the enacted Ly Laws

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on lcleccommunications and enhanced communivaions services in the
period that services are provided

Proo Forma Net Loss Per Share

Pro forma net loss per share has been computed using the number of shares of common stock amd
common stock equivalents outstanding. Pursuant 1o Secunities and Exchange Commussion Stafl Accounting
Bulletin No. 9% (SAB 98), issued in February 1998, nominal issuances of shares dunng the twelve-month
penod preceding the date of the initial filing of the Registration Statement have been included in the
caleulation of common stock equivalent shares as if such shares and options were outstanding for all penods
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NEXTILINK Communications, Inc.

SNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

On February 4, 1997, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Linkatel Pacitic, LI
(Linkatel), » Los Angeles-based compelitive access telecommunications provider. At the time of the
acquisition, Linkatel operated an 80 mile fiver optic telecommunications network covenng ses cral murkets
from the downtown Los Angeles arca to the city of Irvine in Orange County. As part of the assets acyuired,
the Company obtained access to approximately 250 route miles of nght-of-way, of which 183 miles have been
completed, creating one network in Los Angeles and one network in the Orange County arca, The Company
has been providing competitive access services over these networks since the acquisition date and launched
switched local and long distance services in July 1997. The total purchase price of $42.5 million consisted of a
cash payment of $36.1 million, the repayment of debt of $5.6 million and the asumption of net habilines of
$0.8 million.

In December 1996, the Company acquired 1TC, a switched-hased long distance reseller bised in Salt
Lake City, Utah, Consideration for the acquisition of 1TC consisted of a cash payment of $10 million, of
which $2.6 million was placed into escrow to be paid during 1995, plus the issuance of 97,202 Class A Units
of the Company valued at approximately $5.0 million, which were subsequently converted into 519,950 shares
of the Company's Class B common stock. The Company has granted the seller an option requinng the
Company to repurchase such shares at $19.92 per share beginming in the fourth quarter of 1999, This
repurchase obligation will terminate if during tic three-year period commencing March 25, 1995, the averuge
daily closing price of the Class A common stock during any consecutive 60 trading day perod 1 greater than
§19.92.

In January 1996, the Company acquired certam assets of FoneNet, Tow anid LS Network, toe thiough
NEXTLINK Ohio, L.1.C. Consideration for the purchase consisted of o cish payment of $2.6 milhon, the
issuance of 287,721 Class A Units of the Company, valued at $651,933. plus the assumption of capital lease
obligations of $6.1 million.

The above ncquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method ul accounting and, accordimgly, the
results of operations of the acquired companies have been included in the Company’s comsalidated hinancial
statements since the effective dates of acquisition. The aggregate purchase price for the acquisitions vecurmng
in 1997 and 1996 were allocated based on fair values as follows (in thousands):

o 199

Fair value of tangible assets acquired and habilities
ASSUMEd. ..o i i T T o 512,523 §12.5T9
Fair value of intangible assels acquired . 10,705 16,425

SK230 S29004
Purchase price e K12 S2000H
The following unaudited condensed pro forma information presents the results of operations of the

Company for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 as 1l the above transactions had occurred on
January 1. 1996 (in thousands, except per share amounis):

Lo L 19%
BOVERLIE o oo sntarate sra b e e e S i . 8 Mot £ SK.050
Met loss.....ccvvvviiniss R R T 0 11 I T O
Net loss pershare ........ L S I

P he unatidited pro forma infarmation s provided Tos snformational purposes only and s mel pecessanly
indicative of the results of operations that would have occuried had the purchases been made on Januany |,
1996, or of the future anticipated results of operations of the combired companies.
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NEXTUINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (f ntinued )
December V1, 1997 and 19946

6 Long Tewin Debi

On October 1, 1997, the Company sold $400 million in aggregate principal amount of %% Senior Notes
due October 1, 2007, which, afier deducting issue costs, resulted i net proveeds o the Company o
$388.5 million. Interest payments on the 9%% Senior Notes are due semi-annually. The %55 Semor Notes
are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after Ovtober 1. 2002
established redemption prices which decline to 1006 of the stated prncipal amount thereol by Octaber 1,
2005,

On April 25, 1996, the Company completed the sale and issuance of $350 nulhon 1n prncipal amount of
124% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006, The Company used $117.7 million of the gross proceeds to purchase
LS. government securities, representing funds sufficient to provide for payment in full of interest on the 12425
Senior Notes through Aprl 15, 1999 and used an additional $32.2 million to repay advinces and acerued
interest from Eagle River. In addition. the Company incurred costs of $9.5 million in connection with the
financing (including underwriter discounts and commissions). Interest payiments on the 12005 Semor Nuotes
are duc semi-annually. The 12%% Senior Notes are redeemable at the option ol the Compuany, in whole or in
part, at any time on or after April 15, 2001 a1 estublished redemption prices which dechne o HEFE ot the
stated principal amount thereof by April 15, 2004. As of December 31, 1997, the approvmate Lar value of the
1214% Senior Notes was $402.5 million, based on quoted markel pnces.

The indentures pursuant to which the 9%% and 12%% Senior Notes (the Notes) are issued contiain
certain covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidianes o incur
additional indebtedness, issuc stock in subsidiarics, pay dividends or make other distibutions, repurchase
cquity interests or subordinated indebtedness, engage in sale and leasehack transactions, create certin liens.
enter into certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company and its subsidianes, and enter mto
certain mergers and consolidations

In the event of a change in control of the Company as detined in the indentures, holders of the Notes will
have the right to require the Company to purchase their Notes. in whole or 1n pan, at a pnoe equal o 10175 of
the stated prncipal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. i any. thereon o the date of purchise.
The Notes are senior unsccured obligations of the Company, and are subordinated to all corrent and future
indebtedness of the Company’s subsidianies, including trude payables

7. Redeemable Preferred Stock

On January 31, 1997, the Company completed the sale of 5.7 million umits consisting of £1) 145 senior
exchangeable redeemable preferred shares (Preferred Shares), hiquidation preference $30 per share. and
(ii) contingent warrants to acquire in the aggregate S% of cach class of outstanding junior shures Cas defined)
of the Company on a fully diluted basis as of February 1. 1995, which resulied i gross proceeds to the
Company of $285 million, and proceeds net of underwrting discounts, advisany fees and expenses o
$274 million. The contingent warrants eapired unused on October 31, 1997 (30 days alter the Company's
initial public offering of its Class A common stock). Dividends on the Preferred Shares averue I
January 3, 1997 and are payable quarterly, commencing on May |, 1997, at an annual rate of 14% of the
liquidation preference thereof, Dividends may be paid, at the Company 's option, on any dividend payment
dite occurring on or prior to February 1, 2002, cither in cash or by issuing additional Preferred Shares with an
aggregate liquidation preference equal to the amount of such dividends. The Company i required 1o redeem
all of the Preferred Shares outstanding on February 1. 2009 at a redemption price equal to HXFE ol the
liquidation preference thereof, plus accumulated and unpad dividends 0 the dute ol redemption, As of
December 11, 1997, the approximate fair value of the Preferred Shares was $3451 million, hased on quoted
markel prices.
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NEXTLINK Communieations, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 199

Subject 1o certain conditions and the modifications of covenants, the Prelerred Shares are exchangeable
in whole, but not in pan, a1 the option of the Company, on any dividend payme.t date, for 145 senior
subordinated notes (Senior Subordinated Notes) due February 1, 2004 of the Company. All terms and
conditions (other than interest, ranking and maturity) of the Senior Subordinated Notes would be substan-

tially the same as those of the Company’s outstanding 120% Senior Notes due Apnl 15, 2006

K. loncome Laves

Prior to January 31, 1997, the Company was organized and operated as a hinited habiliy company that

was classificd and taxed as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. Effective Pebruary 1,1

w1,

the Company became subject 1o federal and state income taxes directly as 4 C corporation, which resulted i
the Company recording a deferred tax hability and deferred tax provision at that time

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of February 1 1997 (date of conversion 1o &

C corporation) and December 3, 1997 arc as follows (in thousands)

Fobruar 1, Ihecemban 41,
197 17
Delerred tax assels:
Amortization §  uug $ 11In
Capitalized cosls 4070 0, 50K
Provisions not currently deductible 252 11w
Net operating loss carryforwards = AT
Total deferred tax assets ... ... .. 5312 S6,549
Valuation allowance . = (14.064)
3.2 22 ANS
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation . ......... (705) (1.499)
Purchase acquisitions. (6 45K) (20,174)
Other .. .. . (6R6) (612
Total deferred tax Labilities (7.849) (22.4K5)
Net deferred taxes $02,527) s

During 1997, the valuation allowance increased $34.1 nullion, therehy Tully reserving the Company AL

deferred tax assets as of December 3, 1997,

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had net operating loss carmyforwands of approsimately
$119.3 million, which are available to offset future federal and state taxahle income, if any, through 2012

A reconciliation of the Company’s effective income tax rate and the 1S federal tax rate is as follows

Year ) mided
Fhivormbsen VI, 1997
Statutory rate - . .. VLR
State income taxes, net of federal benein 6 AFd
Conversion to C corporition (19%)
Valuation allowance for defermed tay dsaets (2 1%
Purchase acquisitions .. ... (1205
T
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

10, 'ro Forma Sei Loss Per Share

Shares used in the computation of net loss per share amounts were calculated as Fosllima s
Lo (LS

W waghiteal s wnage s o slsies onibstanliing EIREL by, ORS8N

Nuominal ssuances duning the 12 month penod pnor 1o the
Company's filing of its PO, treated as if outstanding lor all
periods presented ... YT , 1911610 1103894

Shures used in computation ol pro forma net loss per share 41055 KNS 19,112,482

Subsequent 1o the Company’s IPO and through December 31, 1997, options to purchase W7, 164 shares
of common stock were issued but were not included in the computation of net boss per share. as these options
did not fall under the provisions of SAB 98 and inclusion of such options would have been antudilutive

11. Stock Options

Prior to February 1997, the Company muntained an Equity Option Plan which provided for the granting
of equity option interests in the Company. These option grants were considered compensatory and were
accounted for similarly to stock appreciation rights. The Company recognized compensation expense over the
vesting periods based on the excess of the fair value of the equity oplion interests. as determined by the
Administrztive Committee, over the exercise price of the option interests. Such expense was penodically
adjusted for changes in the fair value of the equity interest units. These option imterests vested ratihly over i
four-year period, although some retained vesting schedules of previous option plans which, 10 most ciiscs,
vested 200 at employment and 20% at the end of cach subsequent year

In connection with the incorparation of the Company (see Note 9), the Company established the
NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. Stock Option Plan (the Plan) to replace the Equity Option Plan and to
provide a performance incentive for certain officers, emplovees and individuals o1 companies whi provide
services 1o the Company. The Plan provides for the granting of qualiied and non-gualiied stoch aptions All
options outstanding under the Lquity Option Plan were regranied under the new Plan with terms and
conditions substantially the same as under the Equity Option Plan, except that option holders will o longer
have the option to require the Company to repurchase units for cash upon exercise of such units, nor will the
Company have the option to repurchase exercised units for cash. The Company has reserved 4,413,100 shares
of Class A common stock for issuance under the Plan. The options gencrally vest ratahly over four sears and
expire no later than 10 years after the date of grant, with the exception of options onginally granted under the
Equity Option Plan, which expire 15 years after the date of grant

The excreise price of qualified stock options granted under the IMlan may not be less than the fnr market
value of the common shares on the date of grant. The exercise price of non-gualificd stock options granicd
under the PMlan may be greater or less than the fur market value of the comimon stowh on the date of grant, as
determmned at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Stock uptions granicd at pnces below Lnr market value
at the date of grant are considered compensatory, and compensation expense is deferred and recognized
ratably over the option vesting period based on the excess of the fair market value of the stock at the date of
grant over the exercise price of the option. In connection with the regranting of options under the new Plan,
the Company reclassificd the deferred compensation lability relating to compensatory oplions issued under
the Lguity Option Plan to common stock, stated ot amounts paid in. The remaming, unrecognized
compensation expense attributable to these compensatory options was also recorded us deferred compensation,
a contra-cquity halance, and will be recognivzed over the remaining vesting penods of the options
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
December 31, 1997 and 1996

12. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosure of the Company’s cash flow information 1s as follows (in thousands ).

o7 19%
Noncash financing and investing activities were as follows:
Class A common stock issued under lease arrangement ... § 1,400 $ —
Redeemuble preferred stock dividends, paid in redecmable
preferred shares . ... ... e et : B 21 [
Acerued redeemable preferred stock dividends, payable in
redeemable preferred shares, and accretion of preferred
stock redemption obligation ... ... $ BN s -
Issuance of notes payable and assumption of labilites in
acyuisitions ... % $21,280 $ RN
Issuance of Class A common stock in acquisitions Si6.524 % —
Capital lease obligations assumed : $ 4,728 $ 1.an
Members’ equity recorded in Recapitalization .. . $ - § 5.574
Goodwill recorded in Recapitalization $. . $ 2907
Exchange of minonty interests for Class A units L $ 2607
Cash paid for interest ... .. e s 44 865 $20,912

13, Commitments and Contingencies

Capitalized lcases consist of leases of telecommunications equipment and hber optic networks. The
Company is also lcasing premises under various operating leases which, i addinon to rental payments, require
payments for insurance, maintenance, property taxes and other executory costs related to the leases. The lease
agreements have various expirstion dates and renewal options through 202%

Future minimum payments required under capital and operating leases that have an initial or remaining
noncancelable lease term in excess of one year at December X1, 1997 were as follows (in thousands)

{ mpital llr-llli";
Ay

| raves

Year ending December 11,

998 . cesasnirnes T $ 1,255 5 004
B9 ivammmnps craeas ; . 5199 7,269
2000 i e e ; 2825 6,950
2000 . ; Gl . ; 1,200 6.4l
02 .... : 1,205 /305
Therealter . .. ....... i i 5,074 22694
Total minimum lease payments . ... ... .. ; 16,597
Less amounts representing interest .. ... .. ... .. 6.647
Present value of future minimum lease payments . 10,250
Less amounts duc in one year cee 2000

$ 7.640

Rent expense totaled approximately $6,376,000 and $2, 245,000 in 1997 and 1996, respectively
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (€ antinued )
December VI, 1997 and 199

14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Jotmt Venture

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. (Nextel) formed a joint venture called
NEXTBAND Communications, L.L.C. (NEXTBAND), which is owned S0% cach by the Company and
Nextel. On January 28. 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the FCC for which it paid a $50 milhon
refundable deposit to participate in the FCC's Local Multipoint Distribution Service (LMDS) auction which
began on February 18, 1998, OF the deposit amount, $25 million was deposited by the Company LAMDS 15 4
fixed broadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for
the deployment of wireless local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadeasting service. NEXTBAND
his applied for and is eligible to bid on any of the markets being auctioned for the licenses, which could result
in additional funds being contributed by the Company to NEXTBAND.

Nemwork Lease

In February 1998, the Company entered into a 20-year capital lease for exclusive nights to multiple tibers
and innerducts extending over 650 route miles throughout New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvana,
Delaware, Manyland and Washington, D.C. The Company pad $92.0 milhon for the transachon, of which
$%0. 1 million was placed into escrow pending completion and delivery of segments of the network route to the
Company. The Company has the option to renew the lease for two additional 10-year terms

Financing

On March 3. 1998, the Company completed the sale of $135 million in aggregate pnncipal amount of 5
Senior Notes due March 15, 2008, Proceeds from the sale net of discounts, underwnting commissions,
advisory fees and expenses, totaled approximately $326.5 million. The 9% Senior Notes are redeemahle af the
option of the Company, in whole or in part, beginning March 15, 2003 a1 established redemption prices which
decline to 100% of the stated principal amount thercol by Muarch 15, 2006,

The indenture pursuant 1o which the 9% Senior Notes are issued contains certiin covenants thal, among
other things, limits the ability of the Company and its subsidianies to incur additional indebtedness, maue stock
in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated
indebiedness, engage in sale and leaseback transactions, create certimn liens, enter nto certain transictions
with affiliates. sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter inlo certan mergers and
consalidations.

In the event of a change in control of the Company as defined in the indenture, holders of the W' Senior
Notes will have the right 10 require the Company to purchase their 9% Senior Notes, in whele or in part. it a
price cqual to 101% of the stated principal amount thereol, plus ac rued sand unpand interest, ot any, thereon e
the e of purchase. The 9% Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are
sbsardinated o all current and future indebiedness of the Company’s subsidianes, including trade payables
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NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
_Deeember 3L,
TR
Cash inbank . .ovuiaiciiaan, . : : s $100 SIX)
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Commeon stock, no par value,
1,000 shares authorized, issued and vutstanding . .. sl sl

See accompanying note 1o balance sheels

6l




NEXTLINK Capital, Inc.

NOTE TO BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 1997 and 1996

1. Description

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. (NEXTLINK Capital) is a Washington corporation and a wholly owned
subsidiary of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. (NEXTLINK). NEXTLINK Capital was formed tor the
sole purpose of obtaining financing from external sources and is a joint obligor on the 12%:% Senior Notes due
April 15, 2006 of NEXTLINK. NEXTLINK Capital was initially funded with a $100 contribution from
NEXTLINK and has had no operations to date. NEXTLINK Capital's sole source and repayment for the
1214% Senior Notes will be from the operations of NEXTLINK. Therefore, these balance sheets should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of NEXTLINK.




Attachment B




Charles P. Daniels has been Chief Technology Officer for NEXTLINK since November
1995. Mr. Daniels leads NEXTLINK's Technology Services Organization and is
responsible for network engineering. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Daniels worked for MCI
where he was the founder and Program Manager of the network MCI Developer's Lab.
Mr. Daniels was also a founding member of MCI's Advanced Technology Group. Prior
to joining MCI, Mr. Daniels worked for Manufacturers Hanover Trust from 1989 to 1992
as Vice President/Strategic Technology & Research, where he was responsible for
evaluating and implementing new technologies that either reduced costs or generated new

revenuc.

R. Gerard Salemme has been vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations
since July 1997, Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. Salemme was Vice President -
Government Affairs at AT&T Corp. from December 1994, Prior to joining AT&T Corp.,
Mr. Salemme was Senior Vice President - External Affairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991

to December 1994,

Michael J. McHale, Jr. has been Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer since
December 1997. Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. McHale served as Vice President and
General Manager of the Phoenix market and Regional Vice President at Teleport
Communications Group, Inc. from 1993, developing the Phoenix market from its
inception. Prior to that, from 1991 to 1993, he was Vice President, Product Marketing
and Development at MFS Intelenet, Inc. and was responsible for planning and
implementing MFS's initial introduction of switched services in New York City.




. HOLLAND &@NIGHT LLP e

Atlanda Orfando
315 South Calhoun Streel Boca Raton San Francraco
Sapte 600 For Lauderdale St Petersburg
PO Deawer 810 (2P 32302-0810) Jacksonville Tallahassee
Tallahasses, Flonda 32301 Laketand Tampa
B50-224-T000 DEPOSIT DATE Miami Washinglon 0 C
FAX BS0-224-BE32 New York Wes! Paim Beach
April 1, 1998 n744" APR 021998 D. BRUCE MAY

$04-425-5607
dbmay @ hklaw com

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director
Division of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL 32399-08560

Re: - i
Local Exchange Service, Docket No. 240 ¢7¢

Dear Ms. Bayo:

On behalf of our client, NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. ("NEXTLINK"), enclosed for
filing are the original and six (6) copies of NEXTLINK's Application to Provide
Alternative Local Exchange Service Within the State of Florida. Appended to the
original Application are NEXTLINK Communication, Inc.'s most recent 10K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and a check in the amount of $250.00 to

cover the filing fee.

For our records, please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the enclosed
copy of this letter. Thank you for your consideration in this matter. Should you have
questions or need additional information please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

HO D & KNIGHT LLP

ey
D: May

T all, -—‘I\;'n!_.

-
i

DBM/cak
cc: Mr. Tom Williams
Mr. Jason Williams
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